TENTATIVE AGENDA
RAYTOWN BOARD OF ALDERMEN
JUNE 9, 2020
REGULAR SESSION No. 28
RAYTOWN CITY HALL
10000 EAST 59™ STREET
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 64133
7:00 P.M.

During Jackson County’s Recovery Plan, the City of Raytown has chosen to continue to follow the
County’s social distancing guidelines and other recommendations. The public may attend under
the following guidelines:

All attendees (Board/Staff/Public) will use the main entrance door.

Temperature will be taken prior to entrance into the building.

Strongly recommend wearing your own personal mask or using one that is provided.
Limited Seating. Six (6) seats will be available for the public to attend.

Limited access to dais/table for Aldermen and Staff.

We are urging citizens to view via livestream as the meeting will be streamed on Google Ch. 145,
Comcast Ch. 7 and online at www.raytown.mo.us

There will be no in-person Public Comments. Please send your Public Comments to the City Clerk
at thenry@raytown.mo.us by 12:00 p.m. (noon) on Monday, June 8, so that your comments can be

provided to the Board of Aldermen during the Public Comments section of the June 9, 2020
meeting agenda. All Public Comments received will be kept on file in the City Clerk’s office.

OPENING SESSION

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Proclamations/Presentations

* Presentation to Major Randy Hudspeth
Public Comments
Communication from the Mayor

Communication from the City Administrator
Committee Reports

STUDY SESSION

2018-2019 Audit Presentation
Troutt, Beeman & Co., P.C.
Russ Petry, Finance Director

Parks & Recreation Annual Report
Dave Turner, Parks & Recreation Director
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1.

LEGISLATIVE SESSION

CONSENT AGENDA

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be
enacted by one motion without separate discussion or debate. The Mayor or a member of the Board of Aldermen
may request that any item be removed from the consent agenda.

Approval of the Regular May 19, 2020 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes.

R-3294-20: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE
REAPPOINTMENT OF BRENT HUGH TO THE RAYTOWN PARK BOARD. Point of
Contact: Teresa Henry, City Clerk.

R-3295-20: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE
REAPPOINTMENT OF GEORGE MITCHELL TO THE RAYTOWN PARK BOARD.
Point of Contact: Teresa Henry, City Clerk.

REGULAR AGENDA
NEW BUSINESS

R-3296-20: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH
CENTRAL SALT LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF SALT FOR THE PURPOSE OF TREATING
ROADS AND BRIDGES IN INCLEMENT WEATHER. Point of Contact: Jose Leon, Public Works
Director.

R-3297-20: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF
FUNDS TO MISSOURI ORGANIC FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN'’S CLEAN-UP COUPON
PROGRAM IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,000.00 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020.
Point of Contact: Jose Leon, Public Works Director.

R-3298-20: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF
FUNDS TO WCA WASTE CORPORATION TO ASSIST RESIDENTS IN REMOVING BULKY
ITEMS AS WELL CURB-SIDE TREE LIMB, BRUSH AND LEAF DISPOSAL FROM THEIR
PROPERTY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,000.00 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020.
Point of Contact: Jose Leon, Public Works Director.

ADJOURNMENT
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019
Unaudited

The management team for the City of Raytown, Missouri (the City) offers our readers this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2019.

Finances for this City are multifaceted and quite complex. As such, management desires for this narrative to be
informative beyond what is seen on the face of the statements and to discuss the financial activities of the City.
We hope you find these comments helpful as you read through them.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows for the City of Raytown, Missouri (the City) exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows at the close of the 2019 fiscal year by $15,295,011 (net position).

The City’s total net position increased $1,395,130 from 2018 with governmental activities decreased totaling
$330,183 and business-type activities increased totaling $1,725,313.

The City’s General Fund balance increased $558,977 to an ending fund balance of $6,808,685 as of the fiscal
year ended October 31, 2019.

The City’s total long-term obligations decreased $4,752,921 from 2018 with the governmental activities
accounting for $4,107,169 decrease, and business-type activities accounting for $645,752 decrease as the City
continues to reduce its long-term obligations. There was a refinance of revenue bonds that resulted in a
significant decrease in the governmental activities portion.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is provided as an introduction to the basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements consist of three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and
notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains required and other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are a broad overview of
the City’s finances presented in a manner, similar to that of a private business. These statements provide both
long-term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status.

The statement of net position presents all City’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows with
the difference reported as net position. Net position is an important measure of the City’s overall financial health.
The increases and decreases in net position can be monitored to determine whether the City’s financial position
is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for certain items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements report governmental activities of the City, which are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and business-type activities of the City, which are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The governmental
activities for the City include general government, parks and recreation, development and public affairs, public
safety, and public works. The business-type activities for the City include the sanitary sewerage system.

Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019
Unaudited

Fund financial statements. Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City’s government. These
statements report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
These funds are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This information
may be useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, thus it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. This may enable the reader to better understand the long-
term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Proprietary funds. There are two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Internal service funds
are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions.
The City currently does not use internal service funds.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements, since the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like
that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains
certain required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information that provides certain combining and
individual fund statements and schedules.

. Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019
Unaudited

Government-wide Financial Analysis

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of October 31, 20199 and 20188:

City of Raytown
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current assets $19,362,026 $20,250,727 $ 6,750,824 $ 5,352,650 $26,112,850 $25,603,377
Noncurrent assets 27,426,435 30,120,499 13,733,099 14,099,130 41,159,534 44,219,629
Deferred outflows of resources 3,479,836 3,427,633 222,481 56,732 3,702,317 3,484,365
Total assets and $50,268,297 $53,798,859 $20,706,404 $19,508,512 $70,974,701 $73,307,371
deferred outflows of resources
Current liabilities $ 4,616,663 $14,091,871 $ 2,050,034 $ 2,055,933 $ 6,666,697 $16,147,804
Noncurrent liabilities 39,252,902 33,509,024 7,629,412 8,249,017 46,882,314 41,758,041
Deferred inflows of resources 2,017,378 1,486,427 113,301 15,218 2,130,679 1,501,645
Total liabilities and $45,886,943 $49,087,322 $ 9,792,747 $10,320,168 $55,679,690 $59,407,490
deferred inflows of resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets = $27,426,435 $30,120,499 $ 5,517,921 $ 5,030,257 $32,944,356 $35,150,756
Restricted 10,158,660 9,875,118 589,671 573,116 10,748,331 10,448,234
Unrestricted [33,203,741] [35,284,080] 4,806,065 3,584,971 [28,397,676] [31,699,109]
Total net position $ 4,381,354 $ 4,711,537 $10,913,657 $ 9,188,344 $15,295,011 $13,899,881

As indicated earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. The City’s assets
and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows by $4,381,354 for the City’s governmental
activities and $10,913,657 for the City’s business-type activities for a total of $15,295,011 at the close of the 2019
fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City’s net position, $32,944,356, reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure, net of related
debt). The City uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future
spending.

The City currently has deficit unrestricted net position related to governmental activities due to the economic
development project on 350 Highway. In 2007, the City issued tax increment and sales tax revenue bonds in the
amount of $39,990,000 to fund certain development project costs. These bonds were refinanced in September
2019, which improved the payment amounts and shortened the repayment period. Certain debt service payments
are subject to annual appropriations, but not backed by the full faith and credit of the City. This obligation has
resulted in the City recording the obligation with no reportable capital asset.

Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019
Unaudited

The following table reflects the revenues and expenses from the City’s activities for the years ended October 31,
20199 and 20188:

City of Raytown Changes in Net Position

Gowvernmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rewvenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for senvices 1,944,282 2,191,249 7,535,156 6,945,167 9,479,438 9,136,416
Operating grants and contributions 1,225,639 18,387 - - 1,225,639 18,387
Capital grants and contributions 22,389 761,764 - - 22,389 761,764
General revenues:
Property tax 1,780,337 1,744,529 1,780,337 1,744,529
Sales tax 8,261,973 8,123,825 8,261,973 8,123,825
Franchise tax 3,537,487 3,812,717 3,537,487 3,812,717
Intergovernmental activity tax 1,336,286 1,347,392 1,336,286 1,347,392
Miscellaneous 1,203,235 1,465,530 79,963 - 1,283,198 1,465,530
Investment earnings 569,456 475,748 327,325 309,901 896,781 785,649
Total revenues 19,881,084 19,941,141 7,942,444 7,255,068 27,823,528 27,196,209
Program expenses:
General government 2,335,565 2,024,656 - - 2,335,565 2,024,656
Parks and recreation 1,037,043 1,062,475 - - 1,037,043 1,062,475
Community development 638,225 887,204 - - 638,225 887,204
Public safety 7,912,159 7,281,607 - - 7,912,159 7,281,607
Public works 5,396,922 5,171,963 - - 5,396,922 5,171,963
Bond and arbitrage costs 1,254,971 - - - 1,254,971 -
Interest on long term debt 1,636,383 1,647,513 - - 1,636,383 1,647,513
Sewer - - 6,217,131 6,521,005 6,217,131 6,521,005
Total expenses 20,211,268 18,075,418 6,217,131 6,521,005 26,428,399 24,596,423

Transfers in (out) - - - - - -

Change in net position [330,184] 1,865,723 1,725,313 734,063 1,395,129 2,599,786
Net position, beginning 4,711,538 2,845,815 9,188,344 8,454,281 13,899,882 11,300,096
Net position, ending $ 4,381,354 $ 4,711,538 $10,913,657 $9,188,344 $ 15,295,011 $ 13,899,882

. Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019
Unaudited

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $330,184. Governmental fund revenues decreased
$60,057 over 2018. The largest single revenue category for the City of Raytown remains taxes, including property,

sales and franchise taxes. This line totaled $13,579,797 or 70.5% of total governmental revenue.

Governmental activities expenses increased $2,135,850 for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2019, compared to
the prior year. Bond and arbitrage costs increased by $1,254,971 due to the refinancing of the TIF bonds.

Business-type Activities
The Sanitary Sewer Fund is responsible for the total business-type activities for the City. In 2019, operating revenues
were up $669,952 due to a 10% increase in the sewer rate structure. Business-type operating expenses decreased

$264,261 from 2018. The expenses in these statements do not include principal payments made to the sewer bonds
of $869,616, the change in net position with this included would be $855,697.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

Governmental Funds

As of the end of the 2019 fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds have a combined fund balance of $17,070,299,
which represents a decrease of $1,497,683 over 2018. This can largely be attributed to the refinance of the TIF
bonds which occurred in September 2019.

General Fund

The fund balance of the General Fund increased $558,977 during the fiscal year compared to a $1,153,484 increase
in 2018. The General Fund unassigned ending fund balance was $5,366,010 or 50.23% of current year revenues
and 45.15% of current year expenditures and transfers out.

The General Fund revenues were $10,682,273 compared to $11,153,021 in 2018 which represents a decrease of
$470,748 over 2018. The most significant variances occurred with Charges for Services which decreased $229,933
over 2018 as a result of diminished revenue from EMS.

General Fund expenditures, including transfers out, were $11,883,858 compared to $9,999,537 in 2018 which
represents an increase of $1,884,321 or 18.84%. There was a transfer into General Fund from Public Safety Sales
Tax Fund of $1,760,562 to cover these costs in General Fund. After this transfer is accounted, the increase in
expenses was $123,759.

Tax Increment Finance Fund

The TIF Fund revenues were $3,182,666 compared to $2,969,250 in 2018, which represents an increase of
$213,416 primarily due to city sales taxes available for TIF.

The expenditures were $3,083,238 compared to $3,271,933 in 2018 which represents a decrease of $188,695.
This decrease was due to the decreases in debt service payments related to the 350 Highway TIF bonds and
developer obligations.

The ending fund balance of the Tax Increment Finance (TIF) Fund was $3,952,661 at October 31, 2019, a decrease
of $2,829,664 from 2018. This reduction is a direct result from refinancing of the TIF Bonds in September 2019.

. Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019
Unaudited
Transportation Sales Tax Fund

The fund balance of the Transportation Sales Tax Fund increased $864,928 during the fiscal year. It is expected
that these funds will be further used in the upcoming capital projects in 2020-2021.

Other Governmental Funds (Combined)

Other Governmental funds represent multiple combined funds which include Park, Risk Management, Capital
Improvements, Capital Sales Tax, Public Safety Sales Tax, and Stormwater funds. These funds are combined for
reporting purposes only.

The other governmental funds combined revenues and transfers in 2019 were $4,068,449 compared to $4,000,884
in 2018, which includes a sale of capital assets in 2019.

Combined expenditures and transfers out for other Governmental Funds were $4,160,374 compared to $3,146,272
in 2018 which represents an increase of $1,014,102. The increase is due to a change in accounting of Public Safety
Sales Tax now being transferred to General Fund to cover Public Safety expenses now accounted in that fund and
capital outlay.

The combined fund balance of the other governmental funds decreased $91,925 to an ending balance of
$5,106,581 as of October 31, 2019.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail.

The Sanitary Sewer fund operating revenues were $7,615,119 in 2019 compared to operating revenues of
$6,945,167 in 2018. The increase of $669,952 is related to a 10% rate increase. Expenses decreased $264,261.
As discussed above, sewer treatment costs, repair and maintenance and a change in the method of cost allocation
were the primary reasons for the variances.

The net position of the Sanitary Sewer fund at the end of the year increased $1,725,313 to an ending balance of
$10,913,657. Of the ending net position $5,517,921 is the City’s investment in capital assets. The amount of
$589,671 is restricted for debt service and $4,806,065 is unrestricted. The City is attempting to build unrestricted
net position to provide stability in funding for needed infrastructure and maintenance in future years.

General Fund Actual to Budget Analysis

Actual revenues and transfers in were $65,077 less than the final budget. Actual expenditures and transfers out
were $1,085,234 less than the final budget. The positive variance occurred across most departments and functions
primarily related to personnel costs due to some vacancies including 2 key management personnel and reductions
in supplies, services and charges expenditures.

The City far exceeded City Resolution 2039-08 requiring a contingency reserve equal to 17% of the prior year
expenditures. This creates an excellent cushion in the case of an unforeseen crisis.

Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ending October 31, 2019

Unaudited

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of October 31, 2019,
amounts to $41,159,534 compared to $44,219,629 in 2018 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, collection systems, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure. In 2019, the City transferred the EMS Operation and assets to the Raytown Fire District.

The following table reflects the capital asset activity for the years ended October 31, 2019 and 2018:

City of Raytown Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Land $ 1,473,340 $ 1,573,340 $ 433,393 $ 433,393 $ 1,906,733 $ 2,006,733
Construction in progress 179,278 426,607 152,121 - 331,399 426,607
Buildings and improvements 2,826,710 3,235,221 - - 2,826,710 3,235,221
Equipment and vehicles 2,317,384 2,402,820 41,484 57,662 2,358,868 2,460,482
Infrastructure 20,629,723 22,482,511 13,106,101 13,608,075 33,735,824 36,090,586
Total $27,426,435 $30,120,499 $13,733,099 $ 14,099,130 $ 41,159,534 $ 44,219,629

For additional information on capital assets, see Note 4 to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of fiscal year 2019, the City had a total of $50,113,783 of outstanding debt compared to $54,866,704 in
2018. This was a decrease of $4,752,921 from the previous year, largely due to a refinance of the TIF Bonds and
continued payments for sewer bond principal.

The following table reflects changes in the City’s long-term debt for the years ended October 31, 2019 and 2018:

City of Raytown Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Tax increment and sales tax

revenue bonds (including premium) $28,800,000 $32,803,094 $ - $ - $28,800,000 $ 32,803,094
Revenue bonds (including premium) - - 8,215,178 9,084,794 8,215,178 9,084,794
Compensated absences 478,063 463,202 45,153 46,429 523,216 509,631
Net Pension 10,478,995 10,383,173 296,118 64,871 10,775,113 10,448,044
Deweloper obligation 1,483,701 1,622,431 - - 1,483,701 1,622,431
Net OPEB obligation 288,843 364,871 27,732 33,839 316,575 398,710
Total $41,529,602 $45,636,771 $ 8,584,181 $ 9,229,933 $50,113,783 $ 54,866,704

Regquests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions or
requests for more information concerning any of the information provided in this report should be directed to Finance
Director, Finance Department, City of Raytown, 10000 E 59 Street, Raytown, MO 64133.
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4 Bco

Troutt Beeman & Co., P.C.
——CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS——

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the
Board of Alderman

City of Raytown, Missouri

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Raytown, Missouri (the City), as of the year ended October 31, 2019, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Raytown, Missouri, as of
October 31, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement
System, OPEB, and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages iii through ix and 49 through 58
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with managements responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Raytown, Missouri’s basic financial statements. The combining
and individual non-major fund financial statements and other budgetary schedules, listed in the
table of contents as supplemental information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis,
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

2 Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and budgetary schedules are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with  managements responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Troutt, Beeman & Co, P.C.

Harrisonville, Missouri
June 1, 2020
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
OCTOBER 31, 2019

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments $ 10,592,426 $ 4,330,471 $ 14,922,897
Cash and investments-restricted 4,229,223 589,671 4,818,894
Taxes receivable, net 1,681,214 - 1,681,214
Due from other governments 275,354 - 275,354
Accrued interest 15,812 6,890 22,702
Accounts receivable, net 269,878 1,743,450 2,013,328
Loan receivable 574,774 - 574,774
Fines receivable 49,956 - 49,956
Due from agency fund 14 - 14
Inventories 12,166 - 12,166
Prepaid expenses 626,777 80,342 707,119
Land held for future use 1,034,432 - 1,034,432
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 1,652,618 585,514 2,238,132
Buildings and improvements 7,047,940 - 7,047,940
Vehicles and equipment 9,834,214 677,920 10,512,134
Distribution system - 25,485,895 25,485,895
Infrastructure 66,032,794 - 66,032,794
Less: accumulated depreciation (57,141,131) (13,016,230) (70,157,361)
Total capital assets 27,426,435 13,733,099 41,159,534
Total assets 46,788,461 20,483,923 67,272,384
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB 17,851 1,714 19,565
Debt refunding - 14,152 14,152
Pension 3,461,985 206,615 3,668,600
Total deferred outflows of resources 3,479,836 222,481 3,702,317
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 50,268,297 20,706,404 70,974,701
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,194,878 371,834 2,566,712
Unapplied payments - 95,606 95,606
Customer deposits - 510,350 510,350
Courts bonds payable 46,893 - 46,893
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds, capital leases, and contracts 1,930,000 909,616 2,839,616
Compensated absences 346,700 45,153 391,853
Accrued interest 98,192 117,475 215,667
Due in more than one year:
Bonds, capital leases, and contracts 26,870,000 7,305,562 34,175,562
Net pension 10,478,995 296,118 10,775,113
Developer obligations 1,483,701 - 1,483,701
OPEB 288,843 27,732 316,575
Compensated absences 131,363 - 131,363
Total liabilities 43,869,565 9,679,446 53,549,011
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Debt refunding 192,289 - 192,289
OPEB 14,988 1,439 16,427
Pension 1,810,101 111,862 1,921,963
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,017,378 113,301 2,130,679
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 27,426,435 5,517,921 32,944,356
Restricted for:
Capital projects 2,579,325 - 2,579,325
Parks 1,018,040 - 1,018,040
Public works 1,145,004 - 1,145,004
Public safety 703,279 - 703,279
Debt service 4,086,235 589,671 4,675,906
Prepaid items 626,777 - 626,777
Unrestricted (33,203,741) 4,806,065 (28,397,676)
Total net position 4,381,354 10,913,657 15,295,011
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 50,268,297 $ 20,706,404 $ 70,974,701

See accompanying notes.
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ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Cash and investments-restricted
Taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory
Accrued interest
Loan receivable
Land held for future use
Prepaid expenses

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Court bonds payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Court Fines

Fund balances:

Nonspendable:

Prepaid items

Land held for future use
Restricted:

Capital projects

Parks and recreation

Debt service

Public works

Public safety
Assigned to:

General government
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
OCTOBER 31, 2019

Other Total
Transportation Governmental Governmental

General Sales Tax TIF Funds Funds
4,951,127 $ 1,392,057 $ 120,910 $ 4,128,332 $ 10,592,426
- - 4,229,223 - 4,229,223
834,623 262,159 20,142 564,290 1,681,214
319,834 - - - 319,834
- - 248,918 - 248,918
100,710 - 174,644 - 275,354
12,166 - - - 12,166
6,988 2,039 214 6,571 15,812
- - - 574,774 574,774
1,034,432 - - - 1,034,432
408,243 - - 218,534 626,777
7,668,123 $ 1,656,255 $ 4,794,051 $ 5,492,501 $ 19,610,930
223,148 $ 397,391 $ 841,390 $ 280,056 $ 1,741,985
426,471 - - 26,422 452,893
46,893 - - - 46,893
112,970 56,492 - 79,442 248,904
809,482 453,883 841,390 385,920 2,490,675
49,956 - - - 49,956
408,243 - - 218,534 626,777
1,034,432 - - - 1,034,432
- - - 2,579,325 2,579,325
- - - 1,056,285 1,056,285
- - 3,952,661 241,200 4,193,861
- 1,202,372 - - 1,202,372
- - - 942,310 942,310
- - - 68,927 68,927
5,366,010 - - - 5,366,010
6,808,685 1,202,372 3,952,661 5,106,581 17,070,299
7,668,123 $ 1,656,255 $ 4,794,051 $ 5,492,501 $ 19,610,930

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
OCTOBER 31, 2019

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in this fund financial statement,
but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net
Position.

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the governmental funds, but
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.

Deferred pension and OPEB inflows and outflows are not included in the
fund financial statement, but are included in the governmental activities
of the Statement of Net Position:

Inflows

Outflows

Deferred debt refunding is not included in the fund financial statement,
but is included in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net
Position:

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period and,
therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
are not included in the fund financial statement, but are included in the
government-wide statements:

Bonds and capital leases
OPEB Obligation
Development obligations
Net pension

Compensated absences

Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position

See accompanying notes.
7

17,070,299

27,426,435

(98,192)

(1,825,089)
3,479,836

1,654,747

(192,289)

49,956

(28,800,000
(288,843
(1,483,701
(10,478,995
(478,063

— " — ~— ~— ~—

(41,529,602

4,381,354
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REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Fees and fines

Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Current expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Community development

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Refunding bonds

Bond issue costs

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Arbitrage payment

Forward delivery agreement

Sale of capital assets

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE --

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Transportation

Other Governmental

Total Governmental

General Fund Sales Tax TIF Funds Funds

$ 7,388,194 $ 1,190,788 1,636,387 $ 3,464,428 13,579,797
515,713 - - - 515,713
1,219,541 331,776 1,380,314 6,098 2,937,729
1,087,431 - - 101,727 1,189,158
236,491 - - - 236,491
109,469 23,985 265,965 170,037 569,456
125,434 - - 103,234 228,668
10,682,273 1,546,549 3,182,666 3,845,524 19,257,012
2,023,675 - - 42,270 2,065,945
7,188,768 - - 39,091 7,227,859
1,848,993 - - 151,641 2,000,634
910,083 910,083

672,422 - 120,338 - 792,760

- 681,621 - 1,256,727 1,938,348

- - 1,355,000 - 1,355,000

- - 1,607,900 - 1,607,900
11,733,858 681,621 3,083,238 2,399,812 17,898,529
(1.051,585) 864,928 99.428 1,445,712 1,358,483
- - 28,800,000 - 28,800,000
- - (458,660) - (458,660)
- - (31,852,121) - (31,852,121)
- - (796,311) - (796,311)

- - 1,378,000 - 1,378,000

- - - 72,925 72,925
1,760,562 - - 150,000 1,910,562
(150,000) - - (1.760,562) (1,910,562)
1,610,562 - (2,929,092) (1,537.,637) (2.856,167)
558,977 864,928 (2,829,664) (91,925) (1,497,684)
6,249,708 337,444 6,782,325 5,198,506 18,567,983
$ 6,808,685 $ 1,202,372 3,952,661 $ 5,106,581 17,070,299

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because
such outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of
Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays, which are over the capitalization threshold, exceeded
depreciation in the current period:

$  (1,497,684)

Capital outlay 1,938,348
Net book value of assets transferred to a fire district (476,358)
Capital outlay expensed (1,046,478)
Depreciation expense (3,109,576)
(2,694,064)
Governmental funds report bond proceeds as current financial resources. In
contrast, the Statement of Activities treats such issuance of debt as a liability.
Governmental funds report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure. In
contrast, the Statement of Net Position reports repayment as a reduction to long-
term liabilities. This is the amount by which proceeds exceed repayments:
Principal payments to escrow agent 31,240,000
Issuance of debt (28,800,000)
Repayment of principal 1,355,000
3,795,000
Governmental funds report premiums and discounts as other financing sources.
In contrast, those items are capitalized on the Statement of Net Position and
amortized over the life of the bonds on the Statement of Activities. This is the
net amount of premiums, discounts, and amortization:
Amortization of premiums/discounts 15,805
Intergovernmental revenues reported previously in the statement of activities (350,495)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:
Pension expense (306,254)
Accrued interest not reflected on governmental funds 583,638
Developer obligation 138,730
Compensated absences (14,860)
401,254
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (330,184)
See accompanying notes. Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
OCTOBER 31, 2019

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Cash and investments-restricted
Receivables, net:
Billed
Unbilled
Interest
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Non-current assets,
Capital assets, net
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Other postemployment benefits
Debt refunding
Pension
Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unapplied payments
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Bonds, notes, and loans payable
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Net pension
Other postemployment benefits
Bonds, notes, and loans payable
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Other postemployment benefits
Pension

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position

See accompanying notes.
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Sewer Utility

$ 4,330,471
589,671

488,000
1,255,450
6,890
80,342

6,750,824

13,733,099
20,483,923

1,714
14,152

206,615

222,481

$ 20,706,404

317,102
54,732
95,606

117,475

510,350
45,153

909,616

2,050,034

296,118
27,732
7,305,562
7,629,412
9,679,446

1,439

111,862

113,301

5,517,921
589,671
4,806,065
10,913,657

$ 20,706,404
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION --

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

REVENUES:
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Maintenance and repairs
Sewer services
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debts

Operating income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest income
Interest expense

Increase in net position
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

See accompanying notes.
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Sewer Utility

$ 7,535,156
79,963
7.615.119

925,409
146,416
100,382
191,618
3,868,813
523,821
60,538

5,816,997

1,798,122

327,325
(400,134)

(72,809)

1,725,313

9,188,344

$ 10,913,657
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -- PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Received from customers
Payments to employees and fringe benefits
Payments for operations

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt and leases
Interest paid on capital debt and leases
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES,
Investment income
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, Beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents, End of the year

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Total cash and restricted cash and investment

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities,
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Pension related deferrals and assets
Prepaid items
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Accrued interest payable
Accrued interest receivable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes.
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Water and Sewer

7,239,837
(925,409)
(4,309,163)

2,005,265

(157,792)
(869,616)
(412,310)

(1.439,718)

333,632

333,632

899,179

4,020,963

4,920,142

4,330,471
589,671

$ 4,920,142

$ 1,798,122

523,821

(467,058)
59,391

(31,937)
18,974
98,083
12,176

(6,307)

207,143

$ 2,005,265
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ASSETS:
Pooled cash and investments

Taxes receivable, net
Total assets
LIABILITIES,
Due to others

NET POSITION,
Held in trust for pension benefits

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
October 31, 2019

Police Pension

Trust Agency Funds
$ 10,417,113 § 74,756
- 35,115
$ 10,417,113 § 109,871
$ - $ 109,871
$ 10,417,113 § -

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
October 31, 2019

Additions:
Employer contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest and dividends
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Investment expenses

Total investment earnings
Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits paid

Administrative expenses and other
Total deductions

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Police Pension
Trust

$ 590,682

587,608
836,185
(87,337)

1,336,456

1,927,138

1,394,784
308,629
1,703,413

223,725

10,193,388

$ 10,417,113
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Notes to the Financial Statements include a summary of the
accounting policies followed and information used by the City that are
judged to be most appropriate for full disclosure in the preparation of the
financial statements.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the City of Raytown, Missouri (the City), have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of
the City's accounting policies are described below:

Reporting Entity: The City of Raytown, Missouri, was incorporated in 1950 and covers an area
of approximately ten square miles in Jackson County, Missouri. Raytown is a fourth class city
and operates under the mayor/board of aldermen form of government and provides services to
its residents in many areas, including law enforcement, sewer services, community enrichment
and development, and various social services. Fire protection and EMS services are provided
by a fire district, which is a separate government entity. The City Administrator is the chief
administrative officer of the City.

The accompanying financial statements present the City’s primary government and its blended
component unit: the City of Raytown, Missouri Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Commission (the
Commission). The Commission is governed by an eleven-member board. Six members are
appointed by the City’s Board of Aldermen and the remaining five members are appointed by
the respective taxing districts’ boards. Although the Commission is legally separate, the
Commission is reported as a blended component unit because its sole function is to use TIF as
a method to finance economic development through payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) and
economic activity taxes (EATs). The Commission does not issue separate financial statements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements
include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities. Government-wide statements
report information on all of the activities of the City and its component units. Governmental
activities, which are normally supported by taxes and governmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the
amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges
between the government’'s water and sewer function and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

16
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds include other Special
Revenue and Capital Projects funds. The combined amounts for these funds are reflected in a
single column in the fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances. Detailed statements for non-major funds are presented with
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation: The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the following
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recognized when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, and judgments
are reported only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other
financing sources.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued):

Property taxes that are not available for current year operations are shown as deferred revenue.
Property taxes are levied each year on all taxable real and personal property in the City. The
City's property tax is levied each September 1 on the assessed value as of the prior January 1.
Property taxes are billed in total by November 1 following the levy date and considered
delinquent after January 1. On January 1, a lien attaches to all property for which taxes are
unpaid.

Franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Charges for sales and services (other than utility) and miscellaneous revenues are
generally recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the primary operating fund. Expenditures from this fund provide
basic City services, such as police protection, planning, inspection, engineering, animal
control, civil defense, municipal court, and overall basic services such as finance and data
processing, personnel, and general administration of the City.

Revenue sources include taxes, which include property taxes, sales taxes, franchise
taxes, and cigarette taxes. Other revenues include other fees and licenses, and revenue
gathered from the municipal court and investment earnings.

The TIF Fund accounts for taxes collected and expended for operations of the City’s tax
increment financing plans.

The Transportation Sales Tax Fund accounts for sales tax collected and other resources
to be used for road and bridge projects within the City and operation and maintenance of
the City’s streets, curbs, etc.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:
The Park Fund accounts for property taxes levied for health related programs.

The Risk Management Fund accounts for insurance and related expenses not directly
attributable to any one department or fund.

The Capital Sales Tax Fund accounts for incremental property and sales taxes to be used
for the maintenance and construction of capital projects.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued):

The Public Safety Sales Tax Fund accounts for the voter-approved sales tax for the public
safety.

The Capital Improvements Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures paid for
maintaining and improving the City’s streets and storm sewer system.

The Storm Water Fund accounts for voter approved sales tax for maintenance and
improvements for City storm water.

Proprietary fund level financial statements are used to account for activities, which are similar to
those found in the private-sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income,
financial position, and cash flows. The City reports the following proprietary fund:

The Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of sewer services to the residents of the City.
All activities necessary to provide such service are accounted for in this fund, including,
but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing, billing, collection,
and related debt service.

On the proprietary fund financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly
from the operations of the activity, i.e., charges to customers or users who purchase or use
the goods or services of that activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to
provide those goods or services. Non-operating revenues and expenses are items such as
investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the direct operations of the
activity.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to October 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Fiduciary fund level financial statements are custodial in nature and are merely clearing
accounts for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organization, or other
governments. Fiduciary funds are excluded from government-wide financial statements.

The Police Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activity of the Policeman’s Retirement Plan.

The Raytown Highway 350 Transportation Development District (TDD) Fund accounts for taxes
collected on behalf of the TDD.

The Ditzler CID Fund accounts for taxes collected on behalf of the CID.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Budgets: The reported budgetary data represents the final approved budget after amendments
as adopted by the Board of Alderman. Annual operating budgets are adopted for the General
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, and Proprietary Funds. Missouri law
requires budgets to be adopted for all governmental funds. The City prepares its budgets on the
modified accrual basis of accounting for its governmental funds and the accrual basis for its
proprietary funds. The Board of Alderman has amended the budget at various times during the
year and has performed the following procedures in establishing the City’s budget:

(1) Prior to September 31, the City Administrator submits to the Board of Alderman a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following November 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

(2) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

(3) Prior to November 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.
(4) The City Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments
within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the Board of Alderman. This constitutes the City’s legal level of budgetary control.

(5) Appropriations lapse at year-end, but may be reappropriated in the following fiscal year.

Net Position - Government-Wide Statements: Net Position is displayed in three components:

(1) Net investment in capital assets component of net position: Consists of capital
assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of
those assets.

(2) Restricted component of net position: Consists of restricted assets, reduced by
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets, with constraints
placed on the use either by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (b) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

(3) Unrestricted component of net position: Consists of the net amount of the assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are
not included in the determination of "net investment in capital assets" or the
"restricted" component of net position.

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net
assets when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net assets are available.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Fund Equity: In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts
for five classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these
resources. The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form — prepaid items or inventories; or (b)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining four classifications:
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted fund balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources
either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the Board of Alderman-the
government’s highest level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot
be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Alderman removes the specified use by
taking the same type of action imposing the commitment. This classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned fund balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City’s
‘intent” to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The
Board of Alderman and the City Administrator have the authority to assign amounts to be
used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balance include all remaining amounts (except
negative balances) that are reported in the governmental funds, other than the General
Fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the General
Fund. Itis also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to
use externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources—committed, assigned,
and unassigned—in order as needed.

Receivables: Accounts receivable for sewer service is accounted for in the Sewer Fund and
include billed amounts as well as an accrual for the earned but unbilled services from the
previous billing date through October 31, 2019. Receivables in the General Fund represent
charges for services, taxes, intergovernmental and loans. All receivables are stated net of
allowances.

Interfund Receivables and Payables: Transactions between funds that are representative of
cash overdrafts from pooled cash and investing are reported as interfund receivables or
payables.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Pooled Cash, Investments, and Restricted Assets: State statutes authorize the City to invest in
banking institutions and obligations of municipalities, repurchase agreements, U.S. government
agency obligations, and obligations of the U.S. Treasury. Cash resources of the individual
governmental fund types are combined to form a pool of cash and investments. At October 31,
2019, the City's cash was deposited in demand accounts, certificates of deposit, and money
markets. Investments with maturities of less than one year are stated at cost, which
approximates fair value. All investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.
Interest income on pooled cash and investments is allocated based upon each fund's respective
average cash balance.

Certain proceeds of federal grants are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by applicable grant agreements. Assets are also restricted for debt
service reserve requirements.

Statement of Cash Flows: A statement of cash flows has been presented in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 9 for the Proprietary Fund. For purposes
of the statement of cash flows, demand deposits, and all highly liquid investments (including
restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be
cash equivalents.

Interfund Transactions: During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions
between funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services and
construct assets. Legally authorized transfers are treated as transfers and are included in the
results of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Inventory: Inventory, which consists principally of maintenance supplies and gasoline, is
valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund type
inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated vacation and sick leave, that is expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources, is reported as an expenditure and a
fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Accumulated vacation and sick leave of
proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to
employees. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements.

Unearned Revenues: Governmental funds report unearned revenue when resources are
received by the City before it has a legal claim to them. In subsequent periods, when both
revenue recognition criteria are met, or when government has a legal claim to the resources,
revenue is recognized. Proprietary funds report unearned revenues when resources are
received by the City before services are provided. In subsequent periods after services have
been provided revenue is recognized.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads and bridges), are reported in the applicable government or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide statements. Capital assets are defined
as assets with a cost of $5,000 or more. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if
purchased or constructed, or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the asset’s life are not capitalized.

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation on all assets is computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimated lives: Buildings and improvements 25 - 50
years, office equipment and furniture 7 - 10 years, computer equipment 3 - 5 years,
infrastructure 20 - 50 years, machinery and other equipment 7 -15 years, vehicles 5 - 10 years.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources, or expenses/expenditures, until then. The
City reports deferred charge on refunding, pension/OPEB contributions made after the
measurement date, pension changes in assumptions, pension net differences between
projected and actual investment earnings and pension differences between expected and actual
experience as deferred outflows of resources.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources, or revenues until that time. The City reports pension/OPEB differences
between expected and actual experience, the net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension/OPEB investments, and changes of assumptions.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB): The fiduciary net position of the plan has been
determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting. This includes the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB, and OPEB expense,
information about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from the City’s fiduciary net
position. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. There are no investments as this is a pay as you go plan.

Long-Term Obligations: Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when
due. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable
available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. Long-term
liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those
funds.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of the formal budgetary control.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end, if any, are reported as reservations of fund balance for
subsequent year expenditures. When expenditures are incurred in subsequent years relating to
amounts previously encumbered, such amounts are, if material, reappropriated in the year
expended.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement
System (LAGERS) and additions to/deductions from LAGERS fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by LAGERS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

At October 31, 2019, the carrying amount of the City’s cash on hand, demand deposits, and
certificates of deposit in financial institutions was $5,585, $8,607,789, and $1,959,000,
respectively. The bank balances of demand deposits were fully insured with a combination of
FDIC insurance and pledged collateral held in the name of the City. All deposits were held by a
qualified depository.

At October 31, 2019, the City’s cash and investments consisted of the following:

Primary government Fiduciary funds Total

Investments:
Short-term investments held intrust  $ 4,818,894 $ - $ 4818,894
MOSIP 4,425,278 - 4,425,278
Pension trust investments - 10,247,085 10,247,085
9,244,172 10,247,085 19,491,257
Certificates of deposit 1,959,000 - 1,959,000
Cash on hand 5,585 - 5,585
Deposits 8,533,034 244,784 8,777,818
10,497,619 244,784 10,742,403
Total $ 19.741.791 $ 10491869 $30.233.660
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):

Investments by fair value level:

US Treasuries

Federal Agency Issues:
FSA Cap Mgmt Repayment Fund
Federal National Mortgage Assoc
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp
PC Gold Comb Gold Pool

Corporate bonds, stocks and notes

Total investments by fair value level

Investments measured by the net asset value:

Bank Midwest Money Market

MOSIP Liquid Series

Fidelity Treasury Fund Class Il

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Fund
Midcap SPDR Trust Series |

Schwab US Large-Cap Index ETF

Ishares US Preferred Stock ETF

SPDR Wells Fargo Preferred Stock ETF
Palmer Square Income Plus

Lord Abbett Short Duration Income Instl
Vanguard Group High Yield Corp Admiral
Northern Funds Inst. Government

DFA Funds US Small Cap Fund

T.Rowe Price Mutual Funds Mid Cap Growth
MFS International Value R6

DFA Funds Emerging Mkts Core Equity
DFA Funds Intl Small Cap Value
Oppenheimer Mututal Funds Developing Mkts CL Y
Vanguard Group REIT Index Fund

Total investments measured at net asset value

Total investments

25

Level 1

At October 31, 2019, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Maturity

$ 425347 5/15/2021 - 2/15/2029

249,047
7,829
4,690

30,653

6,329,340

7,046,906

1,420,245
4,425,278
2,808,978
340,624
534,345
344,580
31,901
11,484
117,833
241,755
208,918
272,885
452,943
186,153
54,429
158,573
149,569
371,044

312,814
12,444,351

$ 19,491,257

1/1/2028
8/1/2035 - 4/1/2036
2/1/2037
1/1/2048
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):

Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Credit risk is measured using credit quality ratings of investments in debt securities
as described by nationally recognized rating agencies such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s.
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of investment in a single
issuer.

Missouri State Statutes authorize the City, with certain restrictions, to deposit funds in open
accounts, time deposits, and certificates of deposit. Statutes also require that collateral pledged
have a fair market value equal to 100% of the funds on deposit, less insured amounts. Collateral
securities must be held by the City or a disinterested third party and must be of the kind
prescribed by statutes and approved by the State. The City may purchase any investments
allowed by the State Treasurer. These include (a) obligations of the United States government
or any agency or instrumentality thereof maturing and becoming payable not more than three
years from the date of purchase, or (b) repurchase agreements maturing and becoming payable
within 90 days secured by U.S. Treasury obligations or obligations of U.S. government agencies
or instrumentalities of any maturity, as provided by law.

The City’s general credit risk policy is to apply the prudent person rule: Investments shall be
made with the exercise of that judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital, as
well as the probable income to be derived.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates that will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The City does not have a formal policy for interest rate risk. However, the City
does manage its exposure to fair value loss arising from interest rate changes on internally
invested funds by reviewing the portfolio on an ongoing basis for changes in effective yield
amounts. The City has elected to use the segmented time distribution method of disclosure for
its interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk:

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk of
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the
City will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s policy is to collateralize demand deposits with
securities held by the financial institution’s agent and in the City’s name.

26
Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit

36 of 77



CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):

Deposits and investments of the City are reflected in the government-wide financial statements

as follows:
Government- Fiduciary Funds
Wide Statement Statement of
of Net Position Net Position Total
Pooled cash and investments $ 14,922,897 $ 10,491,869 $25,414,766
Restricted cash and investments 4,818,894 - 4,818,894

$ 19,741,791 $ 10,491,869 $ 30,233,660

3. RECEIVABLES:

As a result of providing water and sanitation services to its citizens, the City has extended credit
to them. Accounts receivable are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $158,072
for the Water & Sewer fund.

The City has entered into a development agreement with Gregory Square Partners, LLC and
the Ditzler Community Improvement District (CID). Under the agreement, the City provided
funding totaling $850,000 to be used to finance a portion of the development cost of the
project and development of certain real property located at the intersection of Gregory
Boulevard and Ditzler Avenue. Under the terms of the agreement, the City is scheduled to
be reimbursed for the $850,000 in funding over a period not to exceed 20 years, including
interest at 6.5%, from CID sales taxes generated from taxable sales within the CID district.
The outstanding balance under the agreement is $574,774 as of October 31, 2019.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset activity for the year ended October 31, 2019, consisted of the following:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
11/1/2018 Additions Retirements 10/31/2019
$ 1,573,340 $ - $ 100,000 $ 1,473,340
426,607 80,841 328,170 179,278
1,999,947 80,841 428,170 1,652,618
7,360,540 - 312,600 7,047,940
65,712,220 320,574 - 66,032,794
9,831,362 818,625 815,773 9,834,214
82,904,122 1,139,199 1,128,373 82,914,948
4,125,319 245,447 149,536 4,221,230
43,229,709 2,173,362 - 45,403,071
7,428,542 690,767 602,479 7,516,830
54,783,570 3,109,576 752,015 57,141,131
28,120,552 (1,970,377) 376,358 25,773,817
$ 30,120,499 $ (1,889,536) $ 804,528 $ 27,426,435
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

Capital asset activity for the year ended October 31, 2019, consisted of the following
(Continued):

Balance Balance
11/1/2018 Additions Retirements 10/31/2018
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 433,393 §$ - $ - 9 433,393
Construction in progress - 152,121 - 152,121
Total capital assets not being depreciated 433,393 152,121 - 585,514
Capital assets being depreciated:
Vehicles and equipment 672,249 5,671 - 677,920
Distribution system 25,485,895 - - 25,485,895
Total capital assets being depreciated 26,158,144 5,671 - 26,163,815
Less: Accumulated depreciation:
Vehicles and equipment 614,587 21,849 - 636,436
Distribution system 11,877,822 501,972 - 12,379,794
Total accumulated depreciation 12,492,409 523,821 - 13,016,230
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 13,665,735 (518,150) - 13,147,585
Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 14,099,128 3 (366,029) $ - $ 13,733,099

Depreciation expense was charged to the function/programs of the primary government as
follows:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 65,851
Parks 134,563
Public safety 278,313
Public works 2,630,849

Total depreciation expense, governmental 3,109,576

Business-type activities,
Water and sewer $ 523,821

Land held for Redevelopment: The City has acquired title to certain land that is not used in
the City’s continuing operations but is instead held by the City for future redevelopment
projects. At October 31, 2019, the valuation of the land was $1,034,432.

29
Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit

39 of 77



CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED PENSION PLAN:

Plan description: The City’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City participates in the Missouri
Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS). LAGERS is an agent multiple-
employer, statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and administered in
accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS responsibility to administer the
law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The plan is qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and is tax exempt. The responsibility for the
operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the LAGERS Board of Trustees
consisting of seven persons. LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by
accessing the LAGERS website at www.molagers.org.

Benefits provided: LAGERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Benefit
provisions are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options available in the
state statutes governing LAGERS. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Employees
who retire on or after age 60 (55 for police and fire) with 5 or more years of service are entitled
to an allowance for life based upon the benefit program information provided below. Employees
may retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited service and
after attaining age 55 (50 for police and fire) and receive a reduced allowance.

2019 Valuation
Benefit Multiplier: 1.8%
Final Average Salary: 5 years
Member Contributions: 4%

Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member’s retirement
allowance subsequent to the member’s retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on the
increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited to 4% per year.

Employees covered by benefit terms: At June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 40
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 118
Active employees 95
253
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED PENSION PLAN (Continued):

Contributions: The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially
determined rate, as established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability. Full-time employees of the employer
contribute 4% to the pension plan. Employer contribution rates are 13.8% General and 10%
Police of annual covered payroll.

Net Pension Liability: The employer's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of February 28, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the February 28, 2019, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 3.25% wage inflation 2.5% price inflation
Salary Increase 3.25% to0 6.55% including wage inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25%

Mortality rates were based on the PR-2014 mortality table for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006.

The actuarial assumptions used in the February 28, 2019 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period March 1, 2010 through February 28, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
model method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Equity 39.00% 4.16%
Fixed Income 28.00% 0.89%
Real Assets 33.0% 2.09%
31
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED PENSION PLAN (Continued):

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and
employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially
determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total
pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary = Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(@) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at 6/30/2018 $ 18,690,555 $ 14,864,005 $ 3,826,550
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 583,567 583,567
Interest 1,358,106 1,358,106
Difference between expected and actual experience (695,796) (695,796)
Change in assumptions - -
Contributions - employer 677,189 (677,189)
Contributions - employee 225,529 (225,529)
Net investment income 989,825 (989,825)
Benefit payments, including refunds (498,198) (498,198) -
Administrative expense (24,769) 24,769
Other changes 24,388 (24,388)
Net changes 747,679 1,393,964 (646,285)
Balances at 6/30/2019 $ 19,438,234 $16,257,969 $ 3,180,265

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the
Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as
what the employer’s Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower 6.25% or one percentage point higher 8.25% than the current rate.

Current Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Total Pension Liability (TPL) $ 22,623,551 $ 19,438,234 $ 16,844,397
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 16,257,969 16,257,969 16,257,969
Net Position Liability/(Asset) (NPL) $ 6,365,582 $ 3,180,265 $ 586,428
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED PENSION PLAN (Continued):

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended October 31, 2019 the employer recognized pension expense of $1,077,183.
The employer reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the

following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Net
of Resources of Resources Deferred
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type

Differences in experience $ 1904230 $ 158,585 $ (1,007,183) $ (66,657) $ 988,975

Differences in assumptions 193,252 $ 18,955 - - 212,207

Excess (deficit) investment returns (349,558) $ (45,205) (394,763)
Contributions subsequent to

the measurement date* 181,923 29,075 - 210,998

Total $ 2279405 $ 206,615 $ (1,356,741) $ (111,862) $1,017,417

*The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability for the

year ending October 31, 2020.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows

Year Ending of Resources
2020 $ 348,505
2021 179,644
2022 4,427
2023 60,748
2024 45,855

Thereafter 167,240
$ 806,419

Payable to the Pension Plan

At October 31, 2019, the City reported a payable of $53,157 for the outstanding amount of

contributions due to the pension plan.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (FROZEN):
General information about the plan

Plan_description: Commissioned officers of the Police Department hired before December 31,
2013 are members of the Police Officers’ Retirement Fund Pension Plan. The plan is a single-
employer plan administered by the City. Benefit Trust Company Inc. acts as the investment
advisor and custodian for the plan. The financial statements of this plan are included in the
Pension Trust Fund in the accompanying basic financial statements of the City.

The plan was amended and restated effective December 31, 2013. Under the amendment and
restated plan, benefits were frozen as of December 31, 2013, no new participants are allowed to
enter the plan, and all active participants as of December 31, 2013 are 100% vested. The plan
does not issue a separate financial statement.

Benefits provided: The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Officers who retire at age 55 with 20 or more years of service are entitled to
an allowance for life based on the benefit program information provided below.

2019 Valuation
Benefit Multiplier: 2.5% up to 20 years, plus 1% times the next 10 years
Final Average Salary: 5 highest calendar years of compensation out of last 10 years
Member Contributions: 0%

Employees covered by benefit terms: At January 1, 2019, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 42
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 20
Active employees 20

82

Contributions: The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially
determined rate, as established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability. Full-time employees of the employer
do not contribute to the pension plan. Employees do not contribute to the pension plan.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (FROZEN) (Continued):

Net Pension Liability: The employer’s net pension liability was measured as of January 1,
2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the January 1, 2019, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

Salary Increase 4.0% (planis frozen, scale is for death benefits only)
Investment rate of return  7.25% (net of investment fees, 2.5% inflation component)

Mortality rates were based on the PR-2014 Blue Collar generational mortality table at 2006
and updated to the most recently available (MP-2018) projection scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2019 valuation were based on past
experience of the plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
model method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Equity 65.00% 9.00%
Fixed Income 35.00% 3.50%

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and
employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially
determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total
pension liability.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (FROZEN) (Continued):

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents
the Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well
as what the employer's Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower 6.25% or one percentage point higher 8.25% than the current rate.

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary  Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at 12/31/2017 $17,584,478 $10,962,984 $6,621,494
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 20,437 20,437
Interest 1,272,784 1,272,784
Difference between expected and actual experience (379,418) (379,418)
Change in assumptions (45,424) (45,424)
Contributions - employer 593,459 (593,459)
Contributions - employee - -
Net investment income (678,399) 678,399
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,248,899) (1,248,899) -
Administrative expense - (20,035) 20,035
Other changes - -
Net changes (380,520) (1,353,874) 973,354
Balances at 12/31/2018 $17,203,958 $ 9,609,110 $7,594,848

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents
the Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well
as what the employer’s Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower 6.25% or one percentage point higher 8.25% than the current rate.

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease  Rate Assumption 1% Increase

6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Total Pension Liability (TPL) $ 18,944,991 $ 17,203,958 $15,738,109
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 9,609,110 9,609,110 9,609,110

Net Position Liability/(Asset) (NPL) $ 9,335,881 $ 7,594,848 $ 6,128,999
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT PLAN (FROZEN) (Continued):

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended October 31, 2019 the employer recognized pension expense of
$756,361. The employer reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences in experience $ 124,196 $ (277,473)
Differences in assumptions 34,880 (175,887)
Excess (deficit) investment returns 1,023,504 -
Total $ 1,182,580 $ (453,360)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows

Year Ending of Resources
2019 $ 209,670
2020 87,598
2021 136,892
2022 295,060
2023 -

Thereafter -
$ 729,220

Payable to the Pension Plan

At October 31, 2019, the City reported a payable of $49,177 for the outstanding amount of
contributions due to the pension plan.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN:

Beginning on January 1, 2013, the City offers all employees not governed by a collective
bargaining agreement a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Code Section 401(a). Under the plan, the City matches 50% of employee
contributions, up to 2% of the employee’s annual salary deferrals to the plan. The payroll for the
employees covered by the plan was $3,276,153 during the year. Total gross payroll was
$6,084,588. For the year ended October 31, 2019, the City contributed $58,114 to the plan.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. LONG-TERM DEBT:

Changes in long-term debt of the City for the year ended October 31, 2019, consisted of the

following:

Governmental Activities

Balance Payments/ Balance Due in

November 1, 2018 Additions Adjustments October 31, 2019 One year

Revenue bonds 32,595,000 28,800,000 32,595,000 28,800,000 1,930,000

Bond (discount) / premium 208,094 - 208,094 - -

Total 32,803,094 28,800,000 32,803,094 28,800,000 1,930,000
Other liabilities:

OPEB* 364,871 - 76,028 288,843 -

Net pension* 10,383,173 95,822 - 10,478,995 -

Compensated absences* 463,202 549,549 534,688 478,063 346,700

44,014,340 29,445,371 33,413,810 40,045,901 2,276,700

Business-Type Activities
Balance Payments/ Balance Due in

November 1, 2018 Additions Adjustments October 31, 2019 One year

Revenue Bonds 8,970,000 - 855,000 8,115,000 895,000

Bond (discount) / premium 114,794 - 14,616 100,178 14,616

Total 9,084,794 - 869,616 8,215,178 909,616
Other liabilities:

OPEB 33,839 - 6,107 27,732 -

Net pension 64,871 231,247 - 296,118 -

Compensated absences 46,429 46,853 48,129 45,153 45,153

9,229,933 278,100 923,852 8,584,181 954,769

*Other liabilities are primarily liquidated by the General Fund.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

The compensated absences liability attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated
primarily by the General Fund. The liability for compensated absences has been calculated
using the vesting method, which leaves amounts for both employees who currently are eligible
to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in
the future to receive such payments upon termination are included. A liability for these amounts
is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Total City debt at October 31, 2019, consisted of the following:

Governmental funds,
$28,800,000, Series 2019 refunding revenue bonds, issued for the refunding
of Series 2007 revenue bonds, due in annual installments of $1,930,000 to

$2,875,000, through February 1, 2031, interest at 3.23% $ 28,800,000
Total governmental funds $ 28,800,000
Proprietary fund:

$7,590,000, Series 2006A sewerage system revenue bonds, due in
annual installments of $35,000 to $580,000, through July 1, 2026,
interest at 4.0% to 5.25% $ 3,565,000

$5,495,000, Series 2007A sewerage system revenue bonds, due in annual
installments of $180,000 to $405,000, through January 1, 2028,
interest at 4.0% to 4.75% 3,040,000

$2,310,000, Series 2013 sewerage system refunding revenue bonds,
issued for the refunding of Series 2005B sewerage system revenue bonds,
due in annual installments of $155,000 to $210,000, through July 1, 2027,

interest at .85% to 4.15% 1,510,000
Proprietary bond premium 100,178
Total proprietary fund $ 8215178
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Aggregate annual principal and interest payments applicable to long-term debt are:

Governmental
Years ending Revenue
October 31, Principal Interest Bonds

2020 $ 1,930,000 $ 762,119 $ 2,692,119
2021 1,915,000 836,973 2,751,973
2022 2,120,000 771,808 2,891,808
2023 2,220,000 701,718 2,921,718
2024 2,295,000 628,800 2,923,800
2025-2029 12,660,000 1,962,872 14,622,872
2030-2032 5,660,000 184,271 5,844,271
$ 28,800,000 $ 5,848,561 $ 34,648,561
Business -Type

Years ending Revenue

October 31, Principal Interest Bonds

2020 $ 895,000 $ 348,575 $ 1,243,575
2021 935,000 310,437 1,245,437
2022 960,000 272,485 1,232,485
2023 1,010,000 229,859 1,239,859
2024 1,060,000 184,864 1,244,864
2025-2029 3,255,000 267,317 3,522,317

$ 8,115,000 $ 1,613,537 $ 9,728,537

Bond Reserve Accounts:

Rates and fees established and charged were sufficient to satisfy bond covenant responsibilities
for the sewer fund for the year ended October 31, 2019.

Refunding:

In September 2019, the City issued Series 2019 Tax Increment & Sales Tax Refunding Bonds of
$28,800,000 to refund $31,240,000 of outstanding Series 2007 TIF & Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds. The current refunding was undertaken to reduce the total debt service payments by
$3,092,591 which resulted in an economic gain of approximately $2,013,855.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

The Missouri State Constitution permits a city, by a vote of either two-thirds or four-sevenths of
the voting electorate, depending on the date of the election, to incur general obligation
indebtedness for “city purposes” not to exceed 10% of the assessed value of taxable tangible
property and to incur additional general obligation indebtedness not to exceed, in the aggregate,
an additional 10% of the assessed value of taxable tangible property, for the purpose of
acquiring rights-of-way, construction, extending and improving streets and avenues, and/or
sanitary or storm sewer systems, and purchasing or constructing waterworks, electric, or other
light plants, provided the total general obligation indebtedness does not exceed 20% of the
assessed valuation of taxable property.

RESTRICTED CASH:
Restricted cash and investments at October 31, 2019, consisted of the following:
Special
Revenue Sewer
Account Funds Fund Total
Rebate $ 806,966 $171,952 $ 978,918
Reserve for debt service 3,422,257 417,719 3,839,976

$ 4,229,223 $ 589,671 $4,818,894

LEGAL MATTERS:

There are a number of claims or lawsuits to which the City is, or may be, a party as a result of
certain law enforcement activities, injuries and various other matters and complaints arising in
the ordinary course of activities. The City's management and legal counsel believe that the
potential claims against the City not covered by insurance, if any, resulting from such matters,
would not materially affect the financial position of the City.

PLEDGED REVENUES:

The City, other taxing districts and governmental entities have pledged a portion of future
incremental property tax and sales tax revenues (TIF revenues) to repay the tax increment and
sales tax revenue bonds described above. TIF revenues were projected to produce sufficient
funds to meet debt service requirements over the life of the bonds. Should the normal TIF
revenues (50% of incremental activity taxes) including those of other taxing districts and
governmental entities not be sufficient to meet the required debt service obligations, the City,
subject to annual appropriation, further covenants to appropriate the City’s remaining 50%
portion (effectively 100%) of the economic activity taxes generated by the project and other
legally available funds of the City in an amount equal to the principal and interest of the bonds
due in the next fiscal year. Incremental taxes are pledged to make payments on these
obligations for a period not to exceed 23 years.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PLEDGED REVENUES (Continued):

For the current year, the City made debt service payments on the tax increment and sales tax
revenue bonds totaling $2,962,900. The incremental tax revenues generated by the 350
Highway TIF plan began in October 2009. For the year ended October 31, 2019, the City’s
incremental tax revenues totaled $1,536,387. The remaining funds necessary to meet the
current year debt service requirements were derived from incremental activity tax revenues from
other taxing districts and governmental entities, and interest income totaling $1,646,279.

The City has entered into a developer agreement whereby the developer financed project costs
that have been certified by the City as eligible to be reimbursed related to Phase 2 of the 350
Highway TIF Project. These obligations are to be paid from Phase 2 Economic Activity Taxes
(EATs) revenues in excess of 125% of the debt service payments of the related tax increment
and sales tax revenue bonds. For the current year, debt service on the obligation totaled
$100,661 in principal payments. The remaining balance as of October 31, 2019 is $1,483,701.

TAX REVENUES:

The assessed valuation of the tangible property for the purpose of local taxation as of
September 11, 2018, was as follows:

Real estate $ 262,063,510
Personal property 67,797,217

$ 329,860,727

The tax levy per $100 of assessed valuation of tangible real and personal property for the
calendar year 2019 was as follows:

General Fund $ 0.3435
Park Fund 0.1714
$ 0.5149

Property taxes may attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied
no later than November 1 and are due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied by
November 1 become delinquent January 1 of the following year.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:

Interfund receivable and payable balances at October 31, 2019, were as follows:

Receivable Payable

General Fund $ - $ 112,970
Special Revenue Funds:

Transportation - 56,492

TIF 248,918 -

Park - 5,296

Capital sales tax - 42,369

Public safety - 28,246

Storm water - 3,531
Agency Fund,

350 Highway TDD - 14

$ 248,918 $ 248,918

Transfers during the year ended October 31, 2019, were as follows:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
General Fund $1,760,562 $ 150,000
Special Revenue Funds:
Public safety - 1,760,562
Storm water 150,000 -

$1,910,562 $1,910,562

In general, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects the money to the
fund that expends the money, (2) move receipts restricted or earmarked for debt service from
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due,
and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in a fund to provide operating advances to other
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; workers' compensation, and natural disasters for which the City
carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage
from the prior year and no significant losses in the past three fiscal years.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE CONTRACTS:

On September 25, 2018, the City entered into an agreement with the Raytown Fire
Protection District. This agreement calls for the City to transfer emergency medical services
(EMS) responsibilities to the District as of November 17, 2018. The agreement transfers all
assets of the City’s EMS department to the Fire District and calls for the City to pay the
District $1,350,000 in equal bi-monthly payments. The agreement expired October 31, 2019.

During 2019 $1,006,327 of capital assets were transferred to the District. The net book value
of the assets transferred was $476,358.

POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS:

General information about the OPEB plan

Plan Description: The City provides for a continuation of medical, pharmacy, dental and
vision insurance benefits to eligible early retirees and their spouses. The plan is

administered by Midwest Public Risk (MPR) and is an agent multiple-employer plan. No
separate financial report is issued for the plan.

Benefits Provided: Retirees and their spouses may obtain Medical coverage until Medicare
eligibility by paying required premium rates. Upon retiree death or attainment of age 65,
spouses may continue COBRA coverage for up to three years. The required premium rates
are based to some degree on combined active and retiree experience so retirees are not
charged the full age-based projected cost.

Funding Policy: The City requires the retirees to pay 125% of the premiums charged to active
employees. Retirees and spouses have the same benefits as active employees. Effective
July 1, 2018, retirees are charged 135% of plan premiums. However, all retiree coverage
terminates upon Medicare entitlement or if payment is not received on a timely basis. The
City contributed $20,000 to the plan during fiscal year 2019.

At October 31, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Active employees 143
Retiress and coved spouses 8
1

Net OPEB Liability: The employer’s net OPEB liability of $316,575 was measured as of
October 31, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued):

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2017, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

2017 Valuation
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.00%
Discount rate 3.26%
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal - Level Pecrcent of Pay

Healthcare cost trend rates 7% for 2019, 6.5% for 2020, 6% for 2021,
decreasing by .25% per year to an ultimate
rate of 5.0% for 2025 and later years.

The discount rate was based on an index for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Healthy life mortality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries RPH-2014 Adjusted to
2006 Total Dataset Headcount-weighted Mortality Tables with Scale MP-2019 Full
Generational Improvement. Disabled life mortality rates were based on the Society of
Actuaries RPH-2014 adjusted to 2006 Disabled Retiree Headcount-Weighted Mortality with
MP-2019 Full Generational Improvement.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability:

OPEB Liability
Balance at 11/1/2018 $ 398,710
Charges of the year:
Service cost 19,763
Interest 16,053
Changes of benefits terms (119,472)
Differences between expected and actual experiences -
Changes in assumptions and inputs 21,521
Benefit payments (20,000)
Net changes (82,135)
Balance at 10/31/2019 $ 316,575
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued):

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following presents the Net OPEB Liability of the City,
calculated using a discount rate of 3.26%, as well as what the Net OPEB Liability would be
using a discount rate 1% less(2.26%) and 1% greater (4.26%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.26% 3.26% 4.26%
Total OPEB Liability $ 354,336 $ 316,575 $ 283,749

Healthcare Cost Trend Analysis: The following presents the Net OPEB liability of the City,
considering a 1% decrease and 1% increase of the current rate due to healthcare cost
factors such as medical inflation, utilization of healthcare services, plan design and
technology developments.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $ 270,175 $ 316,575 $ 373,385

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB:

For the year ended October 31, 2019, the City reported OPEB expense/(income) of
($83,525). The City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB as

follows:
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 19,565 $ 16,427

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expenses as follows:

Net Deferred Outflows

Fiscal Year Ending of Resources

2020 $ 131

2021 131

2022 131

2023 131

2024 131
Thereafter 2,483

$ 3,138
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17.

18.

19.

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENCUMBRANCES:

The City uses encumbrances to control expenditure commitments for the year and to
enhance cash management. Encumbrances represent commitments related to executor
contracts not yet performed and purchase orders not yet filled. Commitments for such
expenditure of monies are encumbered to reserve a portion of applicable appropriations.
Encumbrances still open at year-end are not accounted for as expenditures and liabilities,
but, rather as restricted, committed, or assigned fund balance. At October 31, 2019, the
City’s recorded encumbrances in governmental funds were as follows:

Fund
Transportation Sales Tax $ 84,243
Capital Sales Tax 187,192
Storm Water 60,281
Sanitary Sewer 90,208
$ 421,924
TAX ABATEMENTS:

Tax abatements are granted under the Urban Redevelopment program described under
Chapter 353 of the RSMo, Tax Increment Financing program described under Section
99.800 RSMo, the Industrial Development program described under Chapter 100 of RSMo,
and the Enhanced Enterprise Zone program described under Sections 135.950 to 135.973 of
RSMo. For each of these programs, property taxes are abated by reducing the assessed
valuation of the associated properties. For the fiscal year ended October 31, 2019, taxes
abated for the City in connection with the Chapter 353, and Tax Increment Financing
program were estimated at $11,334, and $24,209, respectively.

EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

The City has evaluated subsequent events through June 1, 2020, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued. As a result of the spread of the COVID 19
coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely to negatively impact the
collection of accounts receivable and sale tax revenues. Other financial impact could occur
though such potential impact is unknown at this time.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAY INFORMATION
OTHER THAN MD&A
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - LAGERS

Fiscal year ending June 30,

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

Interest on the Total Pension Liability
Benefit Changes

Difference between expected and actual experience
Assumption Changes

Benefit Payments

Refunds

Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability beginning
Total Pension Liability ending

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions-employer
Contributions-employee

Pension Plan Net Investment income
Benefit Payments

Refunds

Pension Plan Administrative expense
Other

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position ending

Employer Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

Covered Employee Payroll

Employer's Net Pension Liability as a percentage
of covered employee payroll

Notes to schedule:

Last 5 Fiscal Years

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 583,567 $ 656,159 $ 558,483 $ 533,362 $ 560,833
1,358,106 1,289,245 1,057,979 922,257 877,580
- - (1,773,928) - -
(695,796) (460,643) 3,722,090 152,189 (505,106)
- - - 591,243 -
(498,198) (500,347) (347,807) (331,216) (276,894)
747,679 984,414 3,216,817 1,867,835 656,413
18,690,555 17,706,141 14,489,324 12,621,489 11,965,076
$ 19,438,234 $ 18,690,555 §$ 17,706,141 $ 14,489,324 $ 12,621,489
$ 677,189 $ 727,010 $ 800,985 $ 822,633 $ 823,197
225,529 258,512 181,359 - -
989,825 1,627,298 1,364,033 (27,096) 188,721
(498,198) (500,347) (347,807) (331,216) (276,894)
(24,769) (17,249) (17,199) (17,003) (18,549)
24,388 6,240 (1,977) (1,534) 180,399
1,393,964 2,101,464 1,979,394 445,784 896,874
14,864,005 12,762,541 10,783,147 _ 10,337,363 9,440,489
$ 16,257,969 $ 14,864,005 $ 12,762,541 $ 10,783,147 $ _ 10,337,363
$ 3,180,265 $ 3,826,550 $ 4943600 $ 3,706,177 $ 2,284,126
83.64% 79.53% 72.08% 74.42% 81.90%
$5,358,307 $6,106,704 $6,973,652  $7,456,923 $6,988,224
59.35% 62.66% 70.89% 49.70% 32.69%

Only the last 5 years are being shown, as other years come available they will be included until 10 years of data is shown.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOUR
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Police (Frozen)
Last 5 Fiscal Years

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total Pension Liability

Service Cost $ 20,437 $ 15,509 $ 15,526 $ 12,633 $ 12,663
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 1,272,784 1,291,090 1,255,628 1,211,255 1,193,469
Benefit Changes - - - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience (379,418) (100,898) 263,758 148,107 (167,955)
Assumption Changes (45,424) (277,355) - 207,116 -
Benefit Payments (1,248,899) (1,107,281) (1,008,095) (974,294) (899,749)
Refunds - - - - -
Net Change in Total Pension Liability (380,520) (178,935) 526,817 604,817 138,428
Total Pension Liability beginning 17,584,478 17,763,413 17,236,596 16,631,779 16,493,351
Total Pension Liability ending $ 17,203,958 §$ 17,584,478 $ 17,763,413 $ 17,236,596 $ 16,631,779
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions-employer $ 593459 $§ 608,134 $ 562,862 $ 510,320 $ 509,880
Contributions-employee - - - - -
Pension Plan Net Investment income (678,399) 1,373,429 633,761 (157,302) 512,776
Benefit Payments (1,248,899) (1,107,281) (1,008,095) (974,294) (899,749)
Refunds - - - - -
Pension Plan Administrative expense (20,035) (21,491) (12,748) (14,400) (99,319)
Other - - - - -
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (1,353,874) 852,791 175,780 (635,676) 23,588
Plan Fiduciary Net Position beginning 10,962,984 10,110,193 9,934,413 10,570,089 10,546,501
Plan Fiduciary Net Position ending $ 9,609,110 §$ 10,962,984 $ 10,110,193 $ 9,934,413 $ 10,570,089
Employer Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 7594848 $ 6,621,494 $ 7,653,220 $ 7,302,183 $ 6,061,690
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the

Total Pension Liability 55.85% 62.34% 56.92% 57.64% 63.55%
Covered Employee Payroll $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Employer's Net Pension Liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Notes to schedule:
Only the last 5 years are being shown, as other years come available they will be included until 10 years of data is shown.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last two fiscal years

2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 19,763 $ 29,277
Interest 16,053 19,533
Benefit Changes (119,472) (158,872)
Difference between expected and actual experience - -
Assumption Changes 21,521 (20,077)
Benefit Payments (20,000) (26,000)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (82,135) (156,139)
Total OPEB Liability beginning 398,710 554,849
Total OPEB Liability ending $ 316,575 $ 398,710
Covered Employee Payroll $ 6,804,388 $ 6,804,388
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage
of covered employee payroll 4.65% 5.86%

Notes to schedule:
Only the two years are being shown, as other years come available they will be included until 10 years of data is shown.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 7,521,000 $ 7,521,000 $ 7,388,194 $ (132,806)
Licenses and permits 358,310 358,310 515,713 157,403
Intergovernmental 1,194,600 1,211,450 1,219,541 8,091
Charges for services 1,162,610 1,162,610 1,087,431 (75,179)
Fees and fines 407,550 407,550 236,491 (171,059)
Investment earnings 35,000 35,000 109,469 74,469
Other 51,430 51,430 125,434 74,004
Total revenues 10,730,500 10,747,350 10,682,273 (65,077)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 2,167,321 2,259,321 2,023,675 235,646
Public safety 7,391,811 7,378,661 7,188,768 189,893
Public works 2,160,417 2,130,417 1,848,993 281,424
Community development 855,693 855,693 672,422 183,271
Total expenditures 12,575,242 12,624,092 11,733,858 890,234
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (1,844,742) (1,876,742) (1,051,585) 825,157
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 1,760,562 1,760,562 1,760,562 -
Transfers out (350,000) (318,000) (150,000) 168,000
Total other financing sources and (uses) 1,410,562 1,442,562 1,610,562 168,000
Net change in fund balances (434,180) (434,180) 558,977 993,157
Fund balances - beginning 6,249,708 6,249,708 6,249,708 -
Fund balances - ending $ 5,815,528 $ 5,815,528 $ 6,808,685 $ 993,157
56 Study Session - FY2018-2019 Financial Audit
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES,
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
$ 1,175,400 $ 1,175,400 $ 1,190,788 $ 15,388
637,000 637,000 331,776 (305,224)
6,000 6.000 23,985 17,985
1,818,400 1,818,400 1,546,549 (271,851)
1,933,000 2,030,759 681,621 1,349,138
1,933,000 2,030,759 681,621 1,349,138
(114,600) (212,359) 864,928 1,077,287
337.444 337.444 337.444 -
$ 222,844 $ 125,085 $ 1,202,372 $ 1,077,287
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
TIF FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 1,456,100 $ 1,456,100 $ 1,536,387 $ 80,287
Intergovernmental 1,288,500 1,288,500 1,380,314 91,814
Investment earnings 228,800 228,800 265,965 37,165
Total revenues 2,973,400 2,973,400 3,182,666 209,266
EXPENDITURES:
Current,
Community development 204,840 204,840 120,338 84,502
Debt Service:
Principal 1,355,000 1,355,000 1,355,000 -
Interest and other charges 1,607,900 1,607,900 1,607,900 -
Total expenditures 3,167,740 3,167,740 3,083,238 84,502
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (194,340) (194,340) 99,428 293,768
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Refunding bonds - 28,800,000 28,800,000 -
Bond issue costs - (458,660) (458,660) -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - (31,852,121) (31,852,121) -
Arbitrage payment - (796,311) (796,311) -
Forward delivery agreement - 1,378,000 1,378,000 -
Transfers in 200,000 200,000 - (200,000)
Total other financing sources and (uses) 200,000 (2,729,092) (2,929,092) (200,000)
Net change in fund balances 5,660 (2,923,432) (2,829,664) 93,768
Fund balances - beginning 6,782,325 6,782,325 6,782,325 -
Fund balances - ending $ 6,787,985 $ 3,858,893 $ 3,952,661 $ 93,768
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET --
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
OCTOBER 31, 2019

Total
Capital Sales Public Safety Risk Capital Governmental
Park Tax Sales Tax Management Storm Water Improvements Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and investments $ 1,059,493  $ 1,515,405 $ 690,575 $ 71,347 $ 278,333 $ 513,179 $ 4,128,332
Taxes receivable, net 55,971 210,341 280,450 - 17,528 - 564,290
Accrued interest 1,653 2,234 1,409 86 457 732 6,571
Other receivables - - - - - 574,774 574,774
Prepaid expenses 36,572 - - 181,962 - - 218,534
Total assets $ 1,153,689 § 1,727,980 $ 972,434 $ 253,395 $ 296,318 $ 1,088,685 $ 5,492,501
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Accounts payable $ 29,114  § 161,820 $ 1,878 $ 2,506 $ 51,587 $ 33,151 $ 280,056
Accrued expenses 26,422 - - - - - 26,422
Due to other funds 5,296 42,369 28,246 - 3,531 - 79,442
Total liabilities 60,832 204,189 30,124 2,506 55,118 33,151 385,920
Fund balances:
Nonspendable,
Prepaid items 36,572 - - 181,962 - - 218,534
Restricted:
Public safety - - 942,310 - - - 942,310
Debt service - - - - 241,200 - 241,200
Parks and recreation 1,056,285 - - - - - 1,056,285
Capital projects - 1,523,791 - - - 1,055,534 2,579,325
Assigned to,
General government - - - 68,927 - - 68,927
Total fund balances 1,092,857 1,523,791 942,310 250,889 241,200 1,055,534 5,106,581
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,153,689 § 1,727,980 $ 972,434 $ 253,395 $ 296,318 $ 1,088,685 $ 5,492,501
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REVENUES:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Parks and recreation
Public safety
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of long-term debt
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -- NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Total
Capital Sales Public Safety Risk Capital Governmental
Park Tax Sales Tax Management Storm Water Improvements Funds

$ 875,364 $ 999,823 $ 1,506,013 - 83228 $ - 8 3,464,428
- 6,098 - - - - 6,098

101,727 - - - - - 101,727
28,667 33,633 20,176 1,489 7,986 78,086 170,037
23,395 - - 79,839 - - 103,234
1,029,153 1,039,554 1,526,189 81,328 91,214 78,086 3,845,524
- - - 42,270 - - 42,270

910,083 - - - - - 910,083

- - 39,091 - - - 39,091

- - - - 151,641 - 151,641

- 900,876 - - - 355,851 1,256,727

910,083 900,876 39,091 42,270 151,641 355,851 2,399,812
119,070 138,678 1,487,098 39,058 (60.427) (277.765) 1,445,712
31,000 41,925 - - - - 72,925

- - - - 150,000 - 150,000
- - (1,760,562) - - - (1,760,562)
31,000 41,925 (1,760,562) - 150,000 - (1,537,637)
150,070 180,603 (273,464) 39,058 89,573 (277,765) (91,925)
942,787 1,343,188 1,215,774 211,831 151,627 1,333,299 5,198,506
$ 1,092,857 $ 1,623,791 § 942,310 250,889 241,200 $ 1,055,534 § 5,106,581
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

350 Highway TDD October 31, 2018 Additions Deductions October 31, 2019
ASSETS:

Pooled cash and investments $ 74,570 83,648 $ 83,462 $ 74,756

Taxes receivable 13,186 83,960 83,648 13,498
Total assets $ 87,756 167,608 $ 167,110 $ 88,254
LIABILITIES,

Due to others $ 87,756 167,608 $ 167,110 $ 88,254

Ditzler CID October 31, 2018 Additions Deductions October 31, 2019
ASSETS,

Taxes receivable $ 20,698 919 $ - $ 21,617
Total assets $ 20,698 919 $ - $ 21,617
LIABILITIES,

Due to others $ 20,698 919 $ - $ 21,617

Total Agency Funds October 31, 2018 Additions Deductions October 31, 2019
ASSETS:

Pooled cash and investments $ 74,570 83,648 $ 83,462 $ 74,756

Taxes receivable 33,884 84,879 83,648 35,115
Total assets $ 108,454 168,527 $ 167,110 $ 109,871
LIABILITIES,

Due to others $ 108,454 168,527 $ 167,110 $ 109,871
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
PARK FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 863,000 $ 863,000 $ 875,364 $ 12,364
Charges for services 96,700 96,700 101,727 5,027
Investment earnings 7,000 7,000 28,667 21,667
Miscellaneous 26,900 26,900 23,395 (3,505)
Total revenues 993,600 993,600 1,029,153 35,553
EXPENDITURES,
Current,

Parks and recreation 1,047,733 1,082,733 910,083 172,650
Total expenditures 1,047,733 1,082,733 910,083 172,650
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (54,133) (89,133) 119,070 208,203

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES,
Proceeds from sale capital assets - - 31,000 31,000
Total other financing sources - - 31,000 31,000
Net change in fund balances (54,133) (89,133) 150,070 239,203
Fund balances - beginning 942,787 942,787 942,787 -
Fund balances - ending $ 888,654 $ 853,654 $ 1,092,857 $ 239,203
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
CAPITAL SALES TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES:

Taxes $ 994,000 $ 994,000 $ 999,823 $ 5,823

Intergovernmental - 9,285 6,098 (3,187)

Investment earnings 12,000 12,000 33,633 21,633
Total revenues 1,006,000 1,015,285 1,039,554 24,269

EXPENDITURES,

Capital outlay 1,450,250 1,852,557 900,876 951,681
Total expenditures 1,450,250 1,852,557 900,876 951,681
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (444,250) (837,272) 138,678 975,950

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES,

Proceeds from sale capital assets 10,000 10,000 41,925 31,925
Total other financing sources 10,000 10,000 41,925 31,925
Net change in fund balances (434,250) (827,272) 180,603 1,007,875

Fund balances - beginning 1,343,188 1,343,188 1,343,188 -
Fund balances - ending $ 908,938 $ 515,916 $ 1,523,791 $ 1,007,875
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REVENUES:
Taxes

Investment earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES,
Public Safety

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES,
Transfers out

Total other financing uses
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
$ 1,484,000 $ 1,484,000 $ 1,506,013 22,013
10,000 10,000 20,176 10,176
1,494,000 1,494,000 1,526,189 32,189
42,177 42,177 39,091 3,086
42,177 42,177 39,091 3,086
1,451,823 1,451,823 1,487,098 35,275
(1,760,562) (1,760,562) (1,760,562) -
(1,760,562) (1,760,562) (1,760,562) -
(308,739) (308,739) (273,464) 35,275
1,215,774 1,215,774 1,215,774 -
$ 907,035 $ 907,035 $ 942,310 35,275
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final

REVENUES:

Investment earnings $ 500 $ 500 $ 1,489 989

Miscellaneous 54,500 54,500 79,839 25,339

Total revenues 55,000 55,000 81,328 26,328

EXPENDITURES,

Current,

General government 113,300 113,300 42,270 71,030
Total expenditures 113,300 113,300 42 270 71,030
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (58,300) (58,300) 39,058 97,358

Fund balances - beginning 211,831 211,831 211,831 -
Fund balances - ending $ 153,531 $ 153,531 $ 250,889 97,358
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REVENUES:
Taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES,

Current,
Public works

Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES,
Transfers in

Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
STORM WATER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
$ 81,400 $ 81,400 $ 83,228 1,828
1,800 1,800 7,986 6,186
83,200 83,200 91,214 8,014
230,200 230,200 151,641 78,559
230,200 230,200 151,641 78,559
(147,000) (147,000) (60,427) 86,573
150,000 150,000 150,000 -
150,000 150,000 150,000 -
3,000 3,000 89,573 86,573
151,627 151,627 151,627 -
$ 154,627 $ 154,627 $ 241,200 86,573
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CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOUR
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES,
Investment earnings $ 81,000 $ 81,000 $ 78,086 $ (2,914)
Total revenues 81,000 81,000 78,086 (2,914)
EXPENDITURES,

Capital outlay 31,520 423,812 355,851 67,961
Total expenditures 31,520 423,812 355,851 67,961
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 49,480 (342,812) (277,765) 65,047

Fund balances - beginning 1,333,299 1,333,299 1,333,299 -
Fund balances - ending $ 1,382,779 $ 990,487 $ 1,055,534 $ 65,047
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Raytown Parks & Recreation
Department

RAYTOWN

PARKS & RECREATION

June 2019 - May 2020
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Parks Staff

9 Park Board appointed citizens
8 Full Time Employee’s

3 Administrative office

5 Maintenance staff

7 BMX Board volunteers

Raytown Parks & Recreation

Citizens of Raytown

| Board of Aldermen

Mayor |
[

J

Parks & Recreation Board

Dave Turner
Director

Park Operations

Ron Fowler
Superintendent of Parks
(Dir. of Parks Pro Tem)

John Sharp
Maintenance I11
Project/Maintenance
Supervisor

Allan Bancroft
Maintenance I1

| Program Division | | Raytown BMX Track | |Administrative Services

Mike Conrad
Sports & Special Evi

| Raytown BMX Board |

ents
|

Mary Ann McCormick
Admin. Services Coord.

Seasonal Program Staff |

| Volunteers |

Jared Singer
Horticulurist
Program
Supervisor

Vacant
Landscape Tech.

Vacant
Maintenance I

Shaun Jonas
Maintenance I

Secretary (PT)
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Year to date Financial Report

Monthly Income / Expense

Jun-19

Jul-19

Aug-19

Sep-19

Oct-19 Nov-19

Dec-19

B Revenue M Expense

$984,555

$895,641

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20 May-20
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Revenue Sources 2020

* Property Tax 54%
* Sales Tax 23%
* Fees and Charges 9%
* Grants 10%

* Sponsorship/Investments 4%
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Expense Sources 2020

Staffing 45%
Maintenance 23%
Programs/Events 4%

Capital Improvements 28%
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Accomplishments and CIP

* Disc Golf course addition at Minor-Smith and Southwood Parks
e Solar-LED lighting installed in Colman and Kritser Parks

e Security contractor after park curfew

* Micro-Seal of Colman parking areas

 WIFI added in Colman, Kenagy and Kritser Parks

* Metal siding installed on Parks Administration office

* New windows installed in office

* New shingles and roof repair at Rice-Tremonti home

* 1/8 cent Sales Tax renewed in November with 81% support

Study Session - Park Board Yearly Report 2020
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Parks Administrative Office 5912 Lane Ave
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Ongoing Duties and Maintenance

* Maintains 176 acres of Park land, Shelter houses, playgrounds, and
sporting fields.

* Median beautification 637 ST, Raytown Rd & 50 Hwy, 63" ST & Blue
Ridge Cut-off, Gregory & Raytown Rd, Raytown City Hall, Street Scape,
and the 10 Welcome to Raytown signs.

* Monitoring Budget expenditures and lower revenue’s in spring of 2020.
* Reopening facilities as recommended by Jackson County guidelines.

* Reconnecting with participants and volunteers to Parks events.

* Snow removal in support of Public Works and Police.

Study Session - Park Board Yearly Report 2020
8 of 12



Popular Programs and Events

* Raytown Youth Basketball League

* Raytown Live Music Series

* 50+ Softball league

* Tennis league and lessons

* Fishing Derby

* Movies in the Park

 Kids Day at Kenagy

* BMX racing and 2020 Mid-America National Race.

Study Session - Park Board Yearly Report 2020
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COVID-19 Response

* Raytown Park Board voted May 18 to follow Jackson County
guidelines and procedures for reopening Parks and public areas.

* All Department public events and sports postponed until Phase 3.

* Phase 2 facilities reopened to the public: Park office, Shelter houses,
restrooms, skate park, tennis courts and pickleball courts.

* Phase 1 only walking trails, open spaces, disc golf, and fishing were
open to public use.

Special Thanks to Chief Kuehl, Jose Leon, and Russ Petry for working
through supplies and purchases needed for the pandemic.

Study Session - Park Board Yearly Report 2020
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Challenges of the Raytown Parks Department

e Staffing levels make it difficult to expand our duties.

* Vandalism and enforcement.

* Keeping Horticulture staff on board.

* Sponsorships and donations for public events.

* Aging infrastructure and facilities.

* Storage of Parks vehicles and maintenance equipment.
* Limited CIP capability with current budget level.

Study Session - Park Board Yearly Report 2020
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Future Plans

* Kenagy Tennis Court project-LWCF grant, $187,500 in matching funds.
* Replace or redevelop aging structures at Colman and other city parks.
* Plan for Sales Tax renewal/increase before August 2024.

* Complete plan for redevelopment of Super Splash property with MO-
DNR approval.

* Research and implement plan to reinforce Kenagy pond wall.
e Add to trail system and interconnect to larger Metro wide trail systems.

e Attract and hire quality staff to maintain and enhance the Raytown
Parks Department for the enjoyment of its citizens.

* Public requests for Dog Park and Splash Pad.

Study Session - Park Board Yearly Report 2020
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MINUTES
RAYTOWN BOARD OF ALDERMEN
MAY 19, 2020
REGULAR SESSION No. 27
RAYTOWN CITY HALL
10000 EAST 59™ STREET
RAYTOWN, MISSOURI 64133
7:00 P.M.
BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

OPENING SESSION

Mayor Michael McDonough called the May 19, 2020 Board of Aldermen meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Timmy
Hensel of The River Church provided the invocation and led the pledge of allegiance.

Roll

Roll was called by Teresa Henry, City Clerk, and the attendance was as follows:

Present: Alderman Bill Van Buskirk, Alderman Frank Hunt, Alderman Derek Ward, Alderman Bonnaye Mims,
Alderman Jason Greene, Alderman Janet Emerson, Alderman Jim Aziere, Alderman Greg Walters, Alderman

Mary Jane Van Buskirk, Alderman Ryan Myers

Public Comments

None

Proclamations/Presentations

Mayor McDonough presented a proclamation of appreciation to Alderman Bonnaye Mims for her service as
Acting President of the Board of Aldermen during 2019-2020.

Communication from the Mayor

Mayor McDonough spoke on recent events and City business.

Communication from the City Administrator

Damon Hodges, City Administrator, provided an update on the City’s current projects and plans including the
possibility of temporarily waiving fees associated with online and credit card payments to the City.

Damon Hodges asked Raytown Police Chief, Bob Kuehl, to provide an update on the City’s emergency
management in response to COVID-19.

Alderman Walters made a motion to waive the online fee for online payments made to the City. The motion
failed for lack of a second.

Alderman Walters, seconded by Alderman Greene, made a motion to amend the agenda by adding a
discussion item regarding the fees charged for online bill payments.

The motion was discussed.

Alderman Walters’ motion, seconded by Alderman Greene, was approved by a vote of 9-1.

Board of Aldermen Page 1 of 4 May 19, 2020



Ayes: Aldermen Walters, Greene, Aziere, Mims, Mary Jane Van Buskirk, Myers, Hunt, Bill Van Buskirk,
Emerson
Nays: Alderman Ward

Alderman Walters, seconded by Alderman Greene, made a motion to direct staff to waive fees for online bill
payments.

Mayor McDonough moved the discussion item to the end of the agenda.

Committee Reports

A committee report was given by Alderman Emerson.

Mayor McDonough continued with Communication from the Mayor.

LEGISLATIVE SESSION

CONSENT AGENDA

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted by one motion without separate
discussion or debate. The Mayor or a member of the Board of Aldermen may request that any item be removed from the consent agenda. If there is no
objection by the remaining members of the board, such item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. If there is an
objection, the item may only be removed by a motion and vote of the board.

Approval of the Regular May 5, 2020 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes.
Alderman Myers made a motion to adopt.

Alderman Bill Van Buskirk called for the Regular May 5, 2020 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes to be
removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda.

NEW BUSINESS
. Approval of the Regular May 5, 2020 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes.

Alderman Bill Van Buskirk stated that although the minutes were recorded correctly, he had them removed
from the consent agenda as he felt deceived into believing there was a discussion item when there was not.

The item was discussed.

Alderman Emerson, seconded by Alderman Aziere, made a motion to adopt. The motion was approved by a
vote of 8-2. The vote was later approved by a vote of 9-1, when Alderman Mims updated her vote on the
Approval of the Regular May 5, 2020 Board of Aldermen meeting minutes.

Ayes: Aldermen Emerson, Aziere, Hunt, Greene, Ward, Walters, Myers, Mary Jane Van Buskirk
Nays: Aldermen Mims, Bill Van Buskirk

OLD BUSINESS

Public Hearing: A public hearing to consider a Conditional Use Permit for property located at 6614-A Blue
Ridge Blvd.

3a. SECOND READING: Bill No. 6548-20, Section Xlll. AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CONDITIONAL
USE PERMIT FOR LATEASHA RANDLE AND RONNIE WHITE, AUTHORIZING AN ASSEMBLY USE TO
BE LOCATED AT 6614-A BLUE RIDGE BLVD. IN A HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL, (HC) DISTRICT IN THE
CITY OF RAYTOWN, JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI. Point of Contact: Chris Gilbert, Planning &
Zoning Coordinator.
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The item was read by title only by Teresa Henry, City Clerk.

Chris Gilbert, Planning & Zoning Coordinator, presented the item, including the applicant’s request to postpone
the item to July 21, 2020 and remained available for any discussion along with the applicant, LaTeasha
Randle.

Alderman Mims asked to update her vote to ‘Yes’ on the approval of the Regular May 5, 2020 Board of
Aldermen meeting minutes. Therefore, the motion to adopt the minutes was approved by a vote of 9-1.

Alderman Myers, seconded by Alderman Mims, made a motion to table Bill No. 6548-20 to a date certain of
July 21, 2020.

Alderman Mary Jane Van Buskirk, seconded by Alderman Walters, made a motion to table Bill No. 6548-20
indefinitely.

City Attorney Baird clarified that the motion to table indefinitely should be voted on first.
The motion to table indefinitely was discussed.

Alderman Mary Jane Van Buskirk’s motion, seconded by Alderman Walters, to table Bill No. 6548-20
indefinitely, failed by a vote of 5-6.

Ayes: Aldermen Mary Jane Van Buskirk, Walters, Ward, Bill Van Buskirk, Aziere
Nays: Aldermen Mims, Hunt, Greene, Myers, Emerson, Mayor McDonough

Mayor McDonough called for public comments.

Tony Jacob spoke regarding the item.

Barb Schlapia spoke on behalf of the Friends of Rice-Tremonti Home regarding the item. Ms. Schlapia stated
that she also serves as President of the Board of the Raytown Fire Protection District and presented a memo
from Deputy Chief Hunley of the Fire District, regarding a walkthrough assessment of the event space that had
been conducted.

Discussion continued.

Alderman Myers updated his motion to table Bill No. 6548-20 to a date certain of July 21, 2020, to instead
postpone Bill No. 6548-20 to a date certain of July 21, 2020.

Discussion continued.

Alderman Myers, seconded by Alderman Mims, made a motion to call the question. The motion failed by a vote
of 6-4 (requires a 2/3 vote of approval to pass).

Ayes: Aldermen Myers, Mims, Hunt, Aziere, Emerson, Greene
Nays: Aldermen Walters, Bill Van Buskirk, Mary Jane Van Buskirk, Ward

Discussion continued.

Alderman Mims updated her second to Alderman Myers’ motion to postpone Bill No. 6548-20 to a date certain
of July 21, 2020.

Alderman Myers’ motion, seconded by Alderman Mims, to postpone Bill No. 6548-20 to a date certain of July
21, 2020 was approved by a vote of 6-5.
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Ayes: Aldermen Myers, Mims, Hunt, Emerson, Greene, Mayor McDonough
Nays: Aldermen Ward, Bill Van Buskirk, Walters, Mary Jane Van Buskirk, Aziere

Discussion Item — Regarding fees associated with online and credit card bill payments to the City

Russ Petry, Finance Director, presented information about the fees associated with online and credit card
payments to the City and remained for any discussion.

The item was discussed.

Damon Hodges, City Administrator, clarified that the City could enact the waiving of this fee beginning May 26,
2020.

Discussion continued.

Alderman Walters, seconded by Alderman Greene, clarified and updated their motion made earlier in the
meeting to waive the online and credit card processing fees for the time period of May 26, 2020 — June 30,
2020. The motion was approved by a vote of 10-0.

Ayes: Aldermen Walters, Greene, Bill Van Buskirk, Hunt, Ward, Mims, Emerson, Aziere, Mary Jane Van
Buskirk, Myers

Nays: None

ADJOURNMENT

Alderman Mims, seconded by Alderman Ward, made a motion adjourn. The motion was approved
unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN
Request for Board Action

Date: June 3, 2020 Resolution No.: R-3294-20
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen
From: Teresa Henry, City Clerk

Department Head Approval:

City Administrator Approval:

Action Requested: Reappointment of Brent Hugh to the Raytown Park Board.
Recommendation: Approve the reappointment.

Analysis: The Raytown Park Board was established pursuant to Ordinance 109, which
provides for the appointment of nine (9) Park Board Directors appointed by the Mayor
with the approval of the Board of Aldermen. The term of the members is for three years
and the terms are supposed to be staggered to provide consistent and experienced
leadership.

The Mayor has recommended that Brent Hugh be reappointed to the Raytown Park
Board with a term ending June 1, 2023.

Alternatives: Appoint someone else.

\\EDGE\ administration\ Board of Aldermen Meetings\ Agendas\ Agendas 2020\ 06-09-2020\ Reso Reappointing Brent Hugh-

R-3294-20
Raytown Park Board 2020 RBA.doc
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RESOLUTION NO.: R-3294-20

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF BRENT
HUGH TO THE RAYTOWN PARK BOARD

WHEREAS, the Raytown Park Board was established pursuant to Ordinance 109 which
provides for the appointment of nine (9) Park Board Directors appointed by the Mayor with the
approval of the Board of Aldermen; and

WHEREAS, Brent Hugh was originally appointed to the Raytown Park Board on March
19, 2019 and the Mayor desires to reappoint Brent Hugh to a 3-year term expiring June 1, 2023
or until a successor is duly appointed; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the City to approve
such reappointment as proposed by the Mayor;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

THAT Brent Hugh, 5916 Arlington Avenue, Raytown, Missouri is hereby reappointed as a
member of the Raytown Park Board to a 3-year term expiring June 1, 2023, or until a successor
is duly appointed; and

FURTHER THAT, this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of
its passage and approval and any resolution in conflict herewith are hereby superseded.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of
the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 9" day of June, 2020.

Michael McDonough, Mayor

ATTEST: Approved as to Form:

Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk Jennifer M. Baird, City Attorney

\\EDGE\administration\Board of Aldermen Meetings\Agendas\Agendas 2020\06-09-2020\Reso Reappointing Brent Hugh-Raytown
Park Board 2020.doc R-3294-20
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From: Please Do Not Click Reply

To: Teresa Henry
Subject: Application for Boards, Committees and Commissions (form) has been filled out on your site.
Date: Friday, May 29, 2020 5:37:34 PM

Your Site has received new information through a form.
Form: Application for Boards, Committees and Commissions
Site URL: www.raytown.mo.us

Date: 29 May 2020

Last Name: Hugh

First Name: Brent

Middle Name: DeRay

Address: 5916 Arlington Ave

Raytown MO 64133

Phone: Day: 816-695-6736

Phone: Evening: 816-695-6736

Cell Phone Number: 816-695-6736

Fax No.:

Email Address: brent@brenthugh.com

Which board would you like to serve on?: Raytown Parks Board
Because: I have a long-time interest in parks and trails and have been involved in
community affairs at a local and statewide level. | have been Executive
Director of the Missouri Bicycle & Pedestrian Federation since 2005, and
we work on trails and parks-related issues statewide in cooperation with
many parks-related groups across the state.

Also I have served on the Raytown Parks Board for most of the past year and have enjoyed it.

My strength(s) on this Board/Commission will be:: Statewide connections to parks and trails organizations,
experience on

similar boards and commissions, personal interest in parks and trails.

Education:High School/City/State/Date: Davis High School, Kaysville, Utah, 1981.
Trade/College/University/Degree/Date: Bachelor of Music, Utah State University, 1989-93

Bachelor of Science, Mathematics/Physics, Brigham Young

University, 1981-85

Post Graduate/College/Degree/Date: Doctor of Musical Arts, University of Missouri-Kansas City, 1995-2000
Master of Music, University of Missouri-Kansas City, 1993-95

Master of Science, Mathematics, Brigham Young University, 1986-89

Current: Employer/Address/Position: Executive Director

Missouri Bicycle & Pedestrian Federation

2208 Missouri Blvd, Ste. 102 #200, Jefferson City, MO 65109

Past Employer/Address/Position/Dates: Assistant Professor of Music, Coordinator of Piano Pedagogy
Missouri Western State University

4525 Downs Drive, St. Joseph, MO 64507

1998-2005

Past Employer/Address/Position/Dates:

Organization/Leadership Position(s)/Membership Dates (s): Missouri Livable Streets Advisory Committee (past
several years)

MARC Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee (ca. 2005-2012)

MARC Transportation Enhancements Committee & Scoring Subcommittee (ca. 2005-2012)

MARC CMAQ Committee & Scoring Subcommittee (ca. 2005-2012)

MoDOT Statewide Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee (2003-2006)

Kansas City Riverfront Heritage Trail Board (ca. 2005-2017)

Statewide Safe Routes to School Advisory Committee (ca. 2005-2012)

R-3294-20
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Missouri Music Teachers Association, Vice President for Auditions, 2000-2001

and 2003-2005; online content coordinator, 1998-2008

If so, please explain.: No.

If yes, how often do you anticipate this would occur?: Based on the first (partial) year on the Board, I may miss one
or two Board Meetings annually at most, due to family vacations or work-related travel.

Do Not Click Reply - This e-mail has been generated from a super form.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN
Request for Board Action

Date: June 3, 2020 Resolution No.: R-3295-20
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen
From: Teresa Henry, City Clerk

Department Head Approval:

City Administrator Approval:

Action Requested: Reappointment of George Mitchell to the Raytown Park Board.
Recommendation: Approve the reappointment.

Analysis: The Raytown Park Board was established pursuant to Ordinance 109, which
provides for the appointment of nine (9) Park Board Directors appointed by the Mayor
with the approval of the Board of Aldermen. The term of the members is for three years
and the terms are supposed to be staggered to provide consistent and experienced
leadership.

The Mayor has recommended that George Mitchell be reappointed to the Raytown Park
Board with a term ending on June 1, 2023.

Alternatives: Appoint someone else.

R-3295-20
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RESOLUTION NO.: R-3295-20

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF GEORGE
MITCHELL TO THE RAYTOWN PARK BOARD

WHEREAS, the Raytown Park Board was established pursuant to Ordinance 109 which
provides for the appointment of nine (9) Park Board Directors appointed by the Mayor with the
approval of the Board of Aldermen; and

WHEREAS, George Mitchell was originally appointed to the Raytown Park Board on
January 15, 2008 and the Mayor desires to reappoint George Mitchell to a 3-year term expiring
June 1, 2023 or until a successor is duly appointed; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the City to approve
such appointments as proposed by the Mayor;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

THAT George Mitchell, 7621 Harvard, Raytown, Missouri, is hereby reappointed as a
member of the Raytown Park Board to a 3-year term expiring June 1, 2023, or until a successor
is duly appointed; and

FURTHER THAT, this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of
its passage and approval and any resolution in conflict herewith are hereby superseded.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of
the City of Raytown, Missouri, the 9" day of June, 2020

Michael McDonough, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk
Approved as to Form:

Jennifer M Baird, City Attorney
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From: Please Do Not Click Reply

To: Teresa Henry
Subject: Application for Boards, Committees and Commissions (form) has been filled out on your site.
Date: Friday, May 29, 2020 12:09:35 PM

Your Site has received new information through a form.
Form: Application for Boards, Committees and Commissions
Site URL: www.raytown.mo.us

Date: 5/29/20

Last Name: Mitchell

First Name: George

Middle Name:

Address: 7621 Harvard

Raytown, MO 64138

Phone: Day:

Phone: Evening:

Cell Phone Number: 816-536-1939

Fax No.:

Email Address: gmitchell4@sbcglobal.net

Which board would you like to serve on?: Parks

Because: I currently serve on the Board and would like to continue to serve to continue to advocate for the park
system and those that frequent them.

My strength(s) on this Board/Commission will be:: Continuity with the Board and its projects. I have ability to
work with people on both sides of an issue to come to a resolution for the betterment of both parties.
Education:High School/City/State/Date: North Chicago High School
North Chicago, IL

June 1990

Trade/College/University/Degree/Date: MCC-KC

Associate Degree - Nursing

May 2014

Post Graduate/College/Degree/Date:

Current: Employer/Address/Position: St. Joseph Medical Center
1000 Carondelet Dr, KCMO

Mgr. of Performance Improvement/Risk Management

Past Employer/Address/Position/Dates: Research Medical Center
2316 Meyer, KCMO

Quality/Risk Manager

December 2014 - April 2018

Past Employer/Address/Position/Dates: Crittenton Children's Center
10918 Elm Ave, KCMO

Training Coordinator

November 2006 - December 2014

Organization/Leadership Position(s)/Membership Dates (s): Park Board - Various Committee Chairs, Past President

(2008 - present)
Eitas Board of Directors - Treasurer, Vice Chair, Chair (2017 - present)

If so, please explain.: None
If yes, how often do you anticipate this would occur?: Yes. 1 -2 times per year for work

Do Not Click Reply - This e-mail has been generated from a super form.
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CITY OF RAYTOWN
Request for Board Action

Date: June 3, 2020 Resolution No.: R-3296-20
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen
From: Jose Leon, Director of Public Works

Department Head Approval:

Finance Director Approval: (only if funding is requested

City Administrator Approval:

Action Requested: Authorization to enter into an agreement with Central Salt, LLC for future
purchase of 700 tons of salt at the rate of $61.74 per ton.

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the low bid.

Analysis: The City of Raytown staff advertised salt supply bids for the upcoming 2020-2021 winter
season. Salt bids must be put out in the spring due to supply allocation procedures practiced
throughout the industry.

The bid was advertised in the newspaper, on our web page, and via e-mail and phone
correspondence with known salt companies in the mid-west area. Bid information was sent to 7
companies, and 5 submitted responses including 3 no-bids.

Bids were opened on May 26, 2020, and the low bid was from Central Salt, LLC in the amount of
$43,218.00 at a unit price of $61.74 per ton.

Purchases will not occur until the beginning of the 2020-2021 fiscal year. Purchasing authority will
be requested prior to placing the salt order, and is pending the approval of the 2020-2021 budget.

Staff recommends approval of the agreement with Central Salt, LLC.
The Public Works Dept. plans to budget $100,000.00 for salt in FY2020-21.

FY2017 PW spent $50,134.05 on salt, $50,835.40 in FY2018, $108,518.31 in FY2019, and
$74,291.43 in FY2020.

Alternatives: Solicit bids later in the year - this would risk elevated costs and/or yield no bids.

Budgetary Impact:

Not Applicable

Budgeted item with available funds

Non-Budgeted item with available funds through prioritization
Non-Budgeted item with additional funds requested

Fund: Transportation Sales Tax (Fiscal Year 2020-21)
Repair & Maintenance Supplies
Salt Contingency, 204.62.00.100.52300

Anticipated amount to spend in FY2020-21 = an amount not to exceed $100,000

I I 5=

Additional Reports Attached: Tabulation of Salt Bids from May 26, 2020.

R-3296-20
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RESOLUTION NO.: R-3296-20

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH CENTRAL SALT
LLC FOR THE PURCHASE OF SALT FOR THE PURPOSE OF TREATING ROADS AND
BRIDGES IN INCLEMENT WEATHER

WHEREAS, the City of Raytown (the “City”) issued an invitation to bid on its 2020-2021 Road
Salt to treat roads and bridges within the City in inclement weather; and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department received five (5) bids in response to the invitation
and has determined that the bid submitted by Central Salt LLC in the amount of $61.74 per ton was
the most advantageous bid received; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the City to approve an
agreement to purchase salt from Central Salt LLC in the amount of $61.74 per ton;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

THAT the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the City to authorize and approve
an agreement to purchase salt from Central Salt LLC in the amount of $61.74 per ton; and

FURTHER THAT the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute all documents
necessary to this transaction and the City Clerk is authorized to attest thereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City
of Raytown, Missouri, the 9" day of June, 2020.

Michael McDonough, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk
Approved as to Form:

Jennifer M. Baird, City Attorney

R-3296-20
\\EDGE\administration\Board of Aldermen Meetings\Agendas\Agendas 2020\06-09-2020\Reso Salt Purchase Contract 2019-2020.doc 20f3



Bid Tabulation 2020-2021 ROAD SALT PURCHASE

2:00pm, Tuesday, May 26, 2020

1. 2.
Central Salt LLC Independent Salt Co.
Est. Bid Unit Bid Unit
Description S Unit : . n Bid Price ! . n Bid Price
Qty. Price Price
1. |Sodium Chloride 700 Ton | S 61.74 S 43,21800f S 6190 | S 43,330.00

Compass Minerals
L. Est. . Bid Unit . .
Description Unit . Bid Price
Qty. Price
1. |Sodium Chloride 700 | Ton S - No Bid
Morton Salt
L. Est. . Bid Unit . .
Description Unit . Bid Price
Qty. Price
1. |Sodium Chloride 700 | Ton S - No Bid
Cargill, Inc.
L. Est. . Bid Unit . .
Description Unit . Bid Price
Qty. Price
1. |Sodium Chloride 700 | Ton S - No Bid

CITY OF\
RAYTOWN
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30f3



CITY OF RAYTOWN
Request for Board Action

Date: June 3, 2020 Resolution No.: R-3297-20
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen
From: Jose Leon, Director of Public Works

Department Head Approval:

Finance Director Approval: (only if funding is requested)

City Administrator Approval:

Action Requested: Authorize and approve tree limb, brush, and leaf disposal drop off services
for our property owners to Missouri Organic, and to spend in excess of $15,000.00, but within
budgeted amounts for fiscal year 2019-2020.

Recommendation: Staff recommends for approval.
Analysis: The need for property maintenance is ongoing and necessary for the City. The Public
Works Department sold 1,893 Clean-Up Coupons during fiscal year 2018-2019, and 609 so far

during fiscal year 2019-2020 to assist property owners with the clean-up of their property.

Budgeted funds are through the General Fund, Governing Body, Contractual Services for
$40,000.00

Alternatives: N/A

Budgetary Impact:

Not Applicable

Budgeted item with available funds

Non-Budgeted item with available funds through prioritization
Non-Budgeted item with additional funds requested

D

Account Number: General Fund, Governing Body
Contractual Services
101.11.00.100.53999

Amount to Spend: not to exceed $40,000.00

Additional Reports Attached: n/a.

R-3297-20
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RESOLUTION NO.: R-3297-20

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS TO
MISSOURI ORGANIC FOR THE CITY OF RAYTOWN’S CLEAN-UP COUPON PROGRAM IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,000.00 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 BUDGET

WHEREAS, in order to assist our residents in removing yard debris and unwanted
household items from their property the City uses a Clean-up Coupon Program; and

WHEREAS, the Clean-up Coupon Program allows citizens to purchase a coupon for the
disposal of yard debris and unwanted items from their property at a reduced rate utilizing Missouri
Organic; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the citizens of Raytown to
authorize the expenditure of funds to Missouri Organic for the City of Raytown’s Clean-up Coupon
Program in an amount not to exceed $40,000.00 for fiscal year 2019-2020;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

THAT the expenditure of funds to Missouri Organic for the City of Raytown’s Clean-up
Coupon Program in an amount not to exceed $40,000.00 for fiscal year 2019-2020 is hereby
authorized and approved; and

FURTHER THAT the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute all documents
necessary to this transaction and the City Clerk is authorized to attest thereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of the
City of Raytown, Missouri, the 9" day of June, 2020.

Michael McDonough, Mayor

ATTEST: Approved as to Form:

Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk Jennifer M. Baird, City Attorney
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CITY OF RAYTOWN
Request for Board Action

Date: June 3, 2020 Resolution No.: R-3298-20
To: Mayor and Board of Aldermen
From: Jose Leon, Director of Public Works

Department Head Approval:

Finance Director Approval: (only if funding is requested)

City Administrator Approval:

Action Requested: Authorize and approve bulky item pickup as well as curb-side tree limb,
brush, and leaf disposal services for our property owners at WCA Waste Corporation (WCA).
Total purchases will be in excess of $15,000.00 but within budgeted amounts for fiscal year 2019-
2020.

Recommendation: Staff recommends for approval.

Analysis: The need for property maintenance is ongoing and necessary for the City. The
Public Works Department sold 1,893 Clean-Up Coupons during fiscal year 2018-2019, and 609
for fiscal year 2019-2020 to assist property owners with the clean-up of their property.

Trash service for City Hall and the Public Works facilities costs about $3,000.00 per year.

Budgeted funds are through the General Fund, Governing Body, Contractual Services for
$40,000.00

Public Works spent $23,979.00 during fiscal year 2018-2019 with WCA.
Alternatives: N/A

Budgetary Impact:

Not Applicable

Budgeted item with available funds

Non-Budgeted item with available funds through prioritization
Non-Budgeted item with additional funds requested

D

Account Number: General Fund, Governing Body
Contractual Services, City Wide Clean-up Coupons
101.11.00.100.53999

Amount to Spend: In excess of $15,000 but within budgeted amounts.

Additional Reports Attached: N/A

R-3298-20
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RESOLUTION NO.: R-3298-20

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS TO WCA
WASTE CORPORATION TO ASSIST RESIDENTS IN REMOVING BULKY ITEMS AS WELL
CURB-SIDE TREE LIMB, BRUSH AND LEAF DISPOSAL FROM THEIR PROPERTY IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,000.00 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020

WHEREAS, the services of WCA are necessary to assist our resident in order to assist our
residents in removing bulky items as well as curb-side tree limb, brush, and leaf disposal from their
property; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find it is in the best interest of the citizens of Raytown to
authorize the expenditure of funds to WCA Waste Corporation for removing bulky items as well as
curb-side tree limb, brush, and leaf disposal from their property in an amount not to exceed
$40,000.00 for fiscal year 2019-2020;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY
OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

THAT the expenditure of funds to WCA Waste Corporation to remove bulky items as well
as curb-side tree limb, brush, and leaf disposal from their property in an amount not to exceed
$40,000.00 for fiscal year 2019-2020 is hereby authorized and approved; and

FURTHER THAT the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute all documents
necessary to this transaction and the City Clerk is authorized to attest thereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Aldermen and APPROVED by the Mayor of the
City of Raytown, Missouri, the 9" day of June, 2020.

Michael McDonough, Mayor

ATTEST: Approved as to Form:

Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk Jennifer M. Baird, City Attorney
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